ELEMENTAL ALTUS ROYALTIES CORP.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING

AND

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR

WITH RESPECT TO

THE ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF

SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 28, 2024

Dated October 30, 2024



ELEMENTAL ALTUS ROYALTIES CORP.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general and special meeting ("Meeting") of the holders ("Shareholders") of common shares ("Common Shares") of Elemental Altus Royalties Corp. ("Company" or "Elemental") will be held at Suite 1020 - 800 West Pender Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2V6 on November 28, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. (Vancouver time). The Company will be conducting an in-person Meeting in Vancouver, British Columbia.

The Meeting is being held for the following purposes, which are further described in the Company's management information circular dated October 30, 2024 (the "Circular"):

- 1. to receive the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended December 31, 2023, together with the report of the auditor's thereon;
- 2. to elect the directors of the Company to hold office until the next annual general meeting of Shareholders. For more information, see "Matters to be Acted Upon at the Meeting Election of Directors" in the Circular;
- 3. to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("**PwC**") as auditor of the Company until the next annual meeting of Shareholders at a remuneration to be fixed by the directors of the Company. For more information, see "Matters to be Acted Upon at the Meeting Appointment of Auditor" in the Circular;
- 4. to consider and, if deemed advisable, pass an ordinary resolution, the full text of which is attached as Schedule "B" to the Circular, approving and ratifying the Company's incentive compensation plan (the "Omnibus Plan"), including (i) the setting-aside, allotting and reserving 10% of the Company's outstanding Common Shares from time to time for issuance pursuant to the exercise of stock options granted under the Omnibus Plan and (ii) an amendment to the Omnibus Plan to increase the number of Common Shares that may be issued under the "fixed 10% plan" with respect to awards of restricted share units and performance share units by 1,500,000 Common Shares, and the setting-aside, allotting and reserving an aggregate of an additional 1,500,000 Common Shares from time to time for issuance pursuant to such awards. For more information, see "Matters to be Considered at the Meeting Approval of Omnibus Plan" in the Circular;
- 5. to consider and, if deemed advisable, pass an ordinary resolution, the full text of which is attached as Schedule "D" to the Circular, approving the Company's Advance Notice Policy adopted by the Board on October 28, 2024. For more information, see "Matters to be Considered at the Meeting Approval of Advance Notice Policy" in the Circular; and
- 6. to transact such other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Shareholders should refer to the Circular for more detailed information with respect to the matters to be considered at the Meeting.

The board of directors of the Company (the "**Board**") has set the close of business on October 30, 2024 as the date of record (the "**Record Date**") for determining the Shareholders who are entitled to receive notice of and vote at the Meeting. Only persons shown on the register of Shareholders at the close of business on the Record Date, or their duly appointed proxyholders, will be entitled to receive notice of the Meeting and vote on the matters to be considered at the Meeting.

A registered Shareholder may attend the Meeting in-person or may be represented by proxy at the Meeting. All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Meeting in-person or to date, sign and return the accompanying instrument of proxy ("**Instrument of Proxy**") for use at the Meeting or any adjournment or postponements thereof. To be effective, the Instrument of Proxy must be mailed so as to reach or be deposited with Computershare Trust Company of Canada, Attention: Proxy Department, 8th floor, 100 University Ave, Toronto ON, M5J 2Y1, not later than forty-eight (48) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays in the City of Vancouver, British Columbia)

prior to the time set for the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Shareholders may also confirm their proxy vote by telephone or online at www.investorvote.com. Full voting instructions are included within the Instrument of Proxy.

If you are not a registered Shareholder of the Company and received this Notice of Meeting and the Circular through your broker or another intermediary (an "Intermediary", which include, among other entities and individuals, banks, trust companies, securities dealers or brokers and trustees or administrators of self-administered RRSPs, RRIFs, RESPs and similar plans), please complete and return the accompanying Instrument of Proxy or Voting Instruction Form provided to you by such Intermediary, in accordance with the instructions provided therein.

The Circular, this Notice of Meeting, the Instrument of Proxy or Voting Instruction Form and the Company's annual audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the related management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations (the "Meeting Materials") are available on the Company's website (www.elementalaltus.com) and under the Company's profile on SEDAR+ at www.sedarplus.ca. Shareholders are reminded to review the Meeting Materials before voting.

DATED this 30th day of October, 2024

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF Elemental Altus Royalties Corp.

(signed) "Frederick Bell" Chief Executive Officer and Director

TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS	II
GENERAL PROXY MATTERS	1
Solicitation of Proxies	1
Voting of Proxies by Registered Shareholders	1
Voting by Non-Registered Shareholders	2
GENERAL INFORMATION	3
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION	4
VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES	6
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	7
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	7
Risks of Compensation Policies and Practices	7
Compensation Governance	8
Benefit, Contribution, Pension, Retirement, Deferred Compensation and Actuarial Plans	8
Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation, Excluding Compensation Securities	8
TABLE OF DIRECTOR COMPENSATION EXCLUDING COMPENSATION SECURITIES	9
Outstanding Compensation Securities	9
Termination and Change of Control Benefits	9
OMNIBUS PLAN	10
Incentive Awards	12
Options	12
Restricted Share Units	13
Performance Share Units	13
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans	14
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE	15
Board of Directors	15
Standing Committees of the Board	15
Other Public Company Directorships	15
Orientation and Continuing Education of Board Members	15
Ethical Business Conduct	16
Nomination of Directors	16
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS	16
Compensation Committee Mandate	16
Trading Restrictions	16
Assessment of Directors, the Board and Board Committees	17
AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE	17
Audit Committee Mandate	17
External Auditor Service Fees	18

MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON AT THE MEETING	18
1. Financial Statements	18
2. Election of Directors	18
Elemental Nominees	18
Biographies of Current Management and the Elemental Nominees	21
Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies	
Penalties or Sanctions	24
Personal Bankruptcies	24
3. Appointment of Auditor	25
4. Approval of Amended Omnibus Plan	25
5. Approval of Advance Notice Policy	25
VOTES NECESSARY TO PASS RESOLUTIONS	26
OTHER MATTERS	26
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	26
INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON	26
INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS	26
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	27
APPROVAL	27
SCHEDULE "A" GLOSSARY OF TERMS	A-1
SCHEDULE "B" OMNIBUS PLAN RESOLUTION	B-1
SCHEDULE "C" OMNIBUS PLAN	C-1
SCHEDULE "D" ADVANCE NOTICE POLICY RESOLUTION	D-1
SCHEDULE "E" ADVANCE NOTICE POLICY	E-1
SCHEDULE "F" AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER	F-1

ELEMENTAL ALTUS ROYALTIES CORP.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR

RESPECTING THE ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF COMMON SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 28, 2024

GENERAL PROXY MATTERS

Solicitation of Proxies

This management information circular ("Circular") is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the management of Elemental Altus Royalties Corp. (the "Company"), to be used at the annual general and special meeting ("Meeting") of holders ("Shareholders") of common shares of the Company ("Common Shares") to be held on November 28, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. (Vancouver time) in-person at Suite 1020 - 800 West Pender Street, Vancouver British Columbia, V6C 2V6, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof for the purposes set out in the accompanying notice of annual general and special meeting of Shareholders ("Notice of Meeting"). References in this Circular to the Meeting include any adjournment or postponement thereof. It is expected that the solicitation will be primarily by mail and virtually; however, proxies may also be solicited by certain officers, directors and regular employees of the Company by telephone or personally. These individuals will receive no compensation for such solicitation other than their regular fees or salaries, if any. The cost of solicitation by management will be borne directly by the Company.

The board of directors of the Company ("**Board**") has set the close of business on October 30, 2024 as the date of record ("**Record Date**") for the determination of the registered holders of Common Shares entitled to receive notice of and vote at the Meeting.

In accordance with the investor rights agreement dated December 1, 2022 (the "IRA") between the Company and La Mancha (as defined herein), management is soliciting proxies, and management's nominees will vote such proxies, for the election of Messrs. Benoit and Lunnon, who are nominees of La Mancha. In accordance with a share purchase agreement dated October 16, 2024 (the "SPA") between, among others, the Company and AlphaStream Limited ("AlphaStream"), management is soliciting proxies, and management's nominees will vote such proxies, for the election of Mr. Francis, who is a nominee of AlphaStream.

The Company will be conducting an in-person Meeting at Suite 1020 - 800 West Pender Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2V6.

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Meeting in-person or to date, sign and return the accompanying instrument of proxy ("Instrument of Proxy") for use at the Meeting or any adjournment or postponements thereof. To be effective, the Instrument of Proxy must be mailed so as to reach or be deposited with Computershare Trust Company of Canada, Attention: Proxy Department, 8th floor, 100 University Ave, Toronto ON, M5J 2Y1, not later than forty-eight (48) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays in the City of Vancouver, British Columbia) prior to the time set for the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Shareholders may also confirm their proxy vote by telephone or online at www.investorvote.com. Full voting instructions are included within the Instrument of Proxy.

The Company is not relying on the "notice-and-access" delivery procedures outlined in National Instrument 54-101 - Communication with Beneficial Owners of Securities of a Reporting Issuer ("NI 54-101") to distribute copies of the proxy related materials in connection with the Meeting.

Voting of Proxies by Registered Shareholders

The Common Shares represented by the accompanying Instrument of Proxy if the same is properly executed and is received at the offices of Computershare Trust Company, Attention: Proxy Department, 8th floor, 100 University Ave, Toronto ON, M5J 2Y1, not later than forty-eight (48) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays in the City of Vancouver, British Columbia) or by telephone or online at www.investorvote.com (Full voting instructions are included within the Instrument of Proxy), prior to the time set for the Meeting or any

adjournment or postponement thereof, will be voted at the Meeting, and, where a choice is specified in respect of any matter to be acted upon, will be voted or withheld from voting, as the case may be, in accordance with the specification made. In the absence of such specification, Instruments of Proxy in favour of management's nominees will be voted in favour of each of the Elemental Nominees (as defined herein) as directors of the Company and the other matters identified in the Notice of Meeting. The Instrument of Proxy also confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein with respect to amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting and with respect to other matters which may properly come before the Meeting. At the time of printing of this Circular, management knows of no such amendments, variations or other matters to come before the Meeting. However, if any other matters that are not now known to management should properly come before the Meeting, the Instrument of Proxy will be voted on such matters in accordance with the best judgment of the named proxies.

Appointment and Revocation of Proxies by Registered Shareholders

The persons named in the Instrument of Proxy have been selected by the Board of the Company and have indicated their willingness to represent as proxy the Shareholder who appoints them. A Shareholder wishing to appoint some other person, who need not be a Shareholder, to represent them at the Meeting, may do so by inserting such person's name in the blank space provided in the Instrument of Proxy or by completing another proper Instrument of Proxy and, in either case, depositing the completed and executed Instrument of Proxy at the offices of Computershare Trust Company, Attention: Proxy Department, 8th floor, 100 University Ave, Toronto ON, M5J 2Y1, not later than forty-eight (48) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays in the City of Vancouver, British Columbia) prior to the time set for the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. If the Meeting is adjourned or postponed, then the Instrument of Proxy must be submitted no later than forty-eight (48) hours (excluding Saturday and Sunday and statutory holidays in Vancouver, British Columbia) prior to the time set for the Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. The Instrument of Proxy may indicate the manner in which the appointee is to vote with respect to any specific item, by checking the appropriate space in the Instrument of Proxy. If the Shareholder giving the Instrument of Proxy wishes to confer a discretionary authority with respect to any item of business, then the space opposite the item is to be left blank. The Common Shares represented by the Instrument of Proxy submitted by a Shareholder will be voted in accordance with the directions, if any, set forth in the Instrument of Proxy.

An Instrument of Proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by an instrument in writing executed by a Shareholder or by a Shareholder's attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the Shareholder is a body corporate, under its corporate seal or, by a duly authorized officer or attorney and deposited at the offices of the transfer agent, Computershare Trust Company, Attention: Proxy Department, 8th floor, 100 University Ave, Toronto ON, M5J 2Y1, at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting or with the Chairperson of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or in any other manner permitted by applicable law.

Voting by Non-Registered Shareholders

If you are not a registered Shareholder ("Non-Registered Shareholder") of the Company and received the Notice of Meeting and this Circular through your broker or through another intermediary (an "Intermediary", which include, among other entities and individuals, banks, trust companies, securities dealers or brokers and trustees or administrators of self-administered RRSPs, RRIFs, RESPs and similar plans), please complete and return the Instrument of Proxy or Voting Instruction Form ("VIF") provided to you by such broker or other Intermediary, in accordance with the instructions provided therein.

Most Shareholders are Non-Registered Shareholders because the Common Shares they own are not registered in their names but are instead registered in the name of the brokerage firm, bank or trust company through which they purchased the shares. Common Shares beneficially owned by a Non-Registered Shareholder are registered either: (i) in the name of an Intermediary that the Non-Registered Shareholder deals with in respect of the Common Shares; or (ii) in the name of a clearing agency such as CDS & Co. (the registration name of CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc.) of which the Intermediary is a participant.

Common Shares held by Intermediaries and their nominees can only be voted (for or against resolutions) upon the instructions of the Non-Registered Shareholder. Without specific instructions, the Intermediary or their nominee is prohibited from voting Common Shares for their clients. Each Non-Registered Shareholder should therefore ensure that voting instructions are communicated to the appropriate person well in advance of the Meeting.

NI 54-101 requires Intermediaries to seek voting instructions from Non-Registered Shareholders in advance of Shareholders' meetings. The various Intermediaries have their own mailing procedures and provide their own return instructions to clients, which should be carefully followed by Non-Registered Shareholders to ensure their Common Shares are voted at the Meeting. The VIF supplied to a Non-Registered Shareholder by its Intermediary (or the agent of the Intermediary) is substantially similar to the Instrument of Proxy provided directly to registered Shareholders by the Company. However, its purpose is limited to instructing the registered Shareholder (i.e., the Intermediary or agent of the Intermediary) how to vote on behalf of the Non-Registered Shareholder. In Canada, the vast majority of brokers now delegate responsibility for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge Financial Services, Inc. ("Broadridge"). Broadridge typically prepares a machine readable VIF, mails those forms to Non-Registered Shareholders and asks Non-Registered Shareholders to return the VIFs to Broadridge, or otherwise communicate voting instructions to Broadridge (by way of the Internet or telephone, for example). Broadridge then tabulates the results of all instructions received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of shares to be represented at the Meeting. A Non-Registered Shareholder who receives a VIF cannot use it to vote Common Shares directly at the Meeting. Non-Registered Shareholders should carefully follow the instructions of their broker or other Intermediary, including those regarding when and where their VIF is to be delivered in order to have the Common Shares voted. If you have any questions respecting the voting of Common Shares held through a broker or other Intermediary, please contact that broker or other Intermediary for assistance.

Although a Non-Registered Shareholder may not be recognized directly at the Meeting for the purposes of voting Common Shares registered in the name of their broker, a Non-Registered Shareholder may attend the Meeting as proxyholder for the registered Shareholder and vote the Common Shares in advance of the Meeting in that capacity. Non-Registered Shareholders who wish to indirectly vote their Common Shares as proxyholder for the registered Shareholder, should enter their own names in the blank space on the VIF and return it to their broker (or the broker's agent) in accordance with the instructions provided by such broker in advance of the Meeting.

There are two categories of Non-Registered Shareholders: (i) objecting beneficial owners ("**OBO**") – those who object to their name being made known to the issuer of securities which they own; and (ii) non-objecting beneficial owners ("**NOBOs**") – those who do not object to the issuer of the securities they own knowing who they are.

If you are a NOBO and the Company or its agent has sent the Meeting materials directly to you, your name, address and information about your holdings of securities have been obtained in accordance with applicable securities regulatory requirements from the Intermediary holding the securities on your behalf. By choosing to send such materials to you directly, the Company (and not the Intermediary holding on your behalf) has assumed responsibility for (i) delivering them to you; and (ii) executing your proper voting instructions. Please return your voting instructions as specified in the request for voting instructions.

The Company has distributed copies of the Meeting materials indirectly to NOBOs. OBOs can expect to be contacted by Broadridge or their Intermediary or Intermediary's agents and can access the Meeting materials electronically through a link provided by Broadridge. The Company will assume the costs associated with the delivery of the Meeting materials, as set out above, to NOBOs by the Intermediary. The NOBOs who opted to receive the Meeting materials electronically, will receive a link provided by Broadridge.

All references to Shareholders in this Circular and the Instrument of Proxy and Notice of Meeting, are references to registered Shareholders of the Company unless specifically otherwise stated.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Any reference in this Circular to "Elemental", the "Company", "we", "us" or "our" includes Elemental Altus Royalties Corp. and its material subsidiaries through which its various business operations are conducted, as the context requires.

Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa and words importing any gender include all genders. A reference to an agreement means the agreement, as it may be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time.

Unless otherwise indicated, information in this Circular is given as at October 30, 2024.

Unless otherwise indicated, calculations of percentage amounts or amounts per Common Share set forth in this Circular are based on 245,762,591 Common Shares outstanding as of the close of business on October 30, 2024.

Figures, columns and rows presented in tables provided in this Circular may not add due to rounding.

All statements in this Circular made by or on behalf of management and directors are made in such persons' capacities as executive officers and/or directors, as the case may be, of Elemental and not in their personal capacities.

The information found on, or accessible through, Elemental's website does not form part of this Circular.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This Circular and the documents incorporated by reference into this Circular contain forward-looking statements and forward-looking information (collectively, "forward-looking information") within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities laws. All statements other than statements of historical fact may be forward-looking information. Forward-looking information is frequently characterized by words such as "plan", "expect", "project", "intend", "believe", "anticipate", "estimate", "target", "scheduled", "potential", or other similar words (including negative and grammatical variations), or statements that certain events or conditions "may", "should", "might" or "could" occur. Forward-looking information involves known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in such forwardlooking statements, including risks associated with the impact of general economic conditions, industry conditions, governmental regulation, volatility of commodity prices, currency fluctuations, uncertainties related to commodity price, interest rate and foreign exchange rate swap contracts and/or derivative financial instruments that Elemental may enter into from time to time to manage its risk related to such prices and rates, environmental risks, competition from other industry participants, the lack of availability of qualified personnel or management, stock market volatility and Elemental's ability to access sufficient capital from internal and external sources, the risks discussed in the section entitled "Risk Factors" in Elemental's annual information form dated April 29, 2024 (the "Elemental AIF"), which is filed with the securities commission or similar regulatory authority in each of the provinces and territories of Canada (other than Quebec) and Elemental's other public disclosure documents, and other factors, many of which are beyond Elemental's control. Elemental believes the expectations reflected in this forward-looking information is reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-looking information included in this Circular should not be unduly relied upon.

Specific forward-looking information contained in this Circular includes, among others, statements concerning:

- statements relating to the business and future activities of Elemental after the date of this Circular;
- the financial projections for Elemental;
- the projected outcome of the royalty portfolio of Elemental; and
- other statements that are not historical facts.

Forward-looking information is based on, among other things, Elemental's expectations regarding its future growth, results of operations, future capital and other expenditures (including the amount, nature and sources of funding thereof), competitive advantages, plans for and results of drilling activity, environmental matters, business prospects and opportunities. Such forward-looking information reflects Elemental's current beliefs and assumptions and is based on information currently available to it.

With respect to forward looking information contained in this Circular, assumptions have been made regarding, among other things:

- that commodity prices will not experience a material adverse change;
- the continuation of mining operations at the mines from which Elemental will receive royalty payments and the results of those operations;
- that the mining operations that underly royalties will operate in accordance with disclosed parameters;
- foreign exchange rates and interest rates;
- Elemental's ability to retain current staff and hire additional qualified staff in a timely and cost-efficient manner.
- the regulatory framework governing royalties, taxes and environmental matters in the jurisdictions in which Elemental conducts and will conduct its business;

- operating costs;
- operational reliability;
- production forecasts;
- Elemental's ability to generate sufficient cash flow from operations to meet its current and future obligations;
- Elemental's ability to make capital investments and the amounts of capital investments;
- the availability and price of labour and equipment;
- the status, credit risk and continued existence of counterparties having contracts with Elemental and their affiliates and their performance of such contracts;
- current and future sources of funding for Elemental;
- Elemental's future debt levels;
- the impact of increasing competition on Elemental; and
- Elemental's ability to obtain funding on acceptable terms.

Many of the foregoing assumptions are subject to change and are beyond Elemental's control.

Some of the risks that could affect Elemental's future results and could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking information include:

- the inherent uncertainty associated with financial or other projections or outlooks;
- operating results;
- the failure to realize the anticipated benefits of acquisitions of royalties and/or streams by Elemental;
- the risk relating to the timing, financing and completion of acquisitions of royalties by Elemental;
- the risks inherent in Elemental's operations;
- the commercial and business plans of Elemental;
- availability of adequate levels of insurance;
- risks of war, hostilities, civil insurrection, instability and political and economic conditions in or affecting countries in which Elemental holds royalties;
- severe weather conditions and risks related to climate change;
- risks associated with technology;
- changes in laws and regulations, including regulatory and taxation laws, and the interpretation of such changes to Elemental's business;
- the effects and impacts of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the extent and duration of which continue to be uncertain, on Elemental's business and general economic and business conditions and markets;
- changes in governments in jurisdictions where Elemental has royalties;
- changes in commodity prices;
- differentiation with respect to the mineral reserve and mineral resource estimates for the properties on which Elemental holds a royalty;
- the ability of Elemental's counterparties to comply with the terms of royalty obligations;
- operational hazards;
- natural hazards such as lightning and fires;
- competition for, among other things, capital, the acquisition of assets and skilled personnel;
- risks arising from future acquisition activities;
- sufficiency of funds;
- general economic, market and business conditions;
- volatility of commodity inputs;
- variations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates;
- national or global financial crisis;
- environmental risks and hazards and the cost of compliance with environmental legislation and regulations, including greenhouse gas regulations, potential climate change legislation and potential land use regulations;
- export and import restrictions;
- the need to obtain regulatory approvals and maintain compliance with regulatory requirements;
- the extent of, and cost of compliance with, laws and regulations and the effect of changes in such laws and regulations from time to time including changes which could restrict Elemental's ability to access foreign capital;
- failure to obtain or retain key personnel;

- potential conflicts of interest;
- changes to tax laws and government incentive programs;
- the potential for management estimates and assumptions to be inaccurate;
- risks associated with establishing and maintaining systems of internal controls;
- political risks and terrorist attacks;
- cybersecurity breaches, omissions or failures;
- Elemental's inability to make scheduled payments of the principal of, to pay interest on, or to refinance its indebtedness:
- the inability of Elemental to generate cash flow that is sufficient to service its indebtedness and make necessary capital expenditures;
- restrictions contained in Elemental's credit facilities limiting, among other things, Elemental's ability to
 incur further indebtedness, create certain liens on assets, engage in certain types of transactions or amend
 its royalty contracts without the consent of its lenders;
- Elemental defaulting on its obligations under its indebtedness;
- pool operations of the properties in respect of which Elemental holds an interest;
- some of the properties of which Elemental has an interest never achieving commercial production;
- bankruptcy, liquidity or insolvency risks;
- the risks associated with Indigenous peoples opposing operations or new developments.
- Risks arising from the COVID-19 pandemic may have a significant impact on Elemental;
- · depleted mineral reserves and mineral resources;
- defects in title to properties underlying Elemental's royalties or defects in Elemental's royalties;
- litigation affecting the properties underlying Elemental's royalties; and
- the risks related to the construction, development, and/or expansion in relation to the mines and properties of which Elemental holds a royalty.

The foregoing list of risks, uncertainties and factors is not intended to be exhaustive. The effect of any one risk, uncertainty or factor on particular forward-looking information is uncertain because these factors are independent, and Elemental's future course of action would depend on an assessment of all available information at that time. Based on information available to Elemental on the date of this Circular, management believes that the expectations in the forward-looking information are reasonable, however there can be no assurance as to Elemental's future results (financial and otherwise), levels of activity or achievements.

Although the forward-looking information is based on assumptions which Elemental believes to be reasonable, neither Elemental nor the Board makes any assurance that actual results will be consistent with such forward-looking information. Such forward-looking information is made as of the date of this Circular unless otherwise stated, and neither Elemental nor the Board assumes any obligation to update or revise such information to reflect new events or circumstances, except as required by applicable Canadian securities laws. Due to the risks, uncertainties and assumptions inherent in forward-looking information, readers should not place undue reliance on this forward-looking information.

This cautionary statement qualifies all forward-looking information contained in this Circular.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES

The authorized share capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares. As at the Record Date, there were 245,762,591 Common Shares issued and outstanding. Each Common Share entitles the holder thereof to one (1) vote on all matters to be acted upon at the Meeting.

Registered holders of Common Shares as at the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to vote their Common Shares (or, if a completed and executed Instrument of Proxy has been delivered to the Company's transfer agent, Computershare Trust Company, within the time specified in the Notice of Meeting, to vote in advance by proxy) on the basis of one (1) vote for each Common Share held except to the extent that: (i) such Shareholder transfers their shares after the close of business on the Record Date; and (ii) such transferee, at least ten (10) days prior to the Meeting, produces properly endorsed share certificates to the secretary or transfer agent of the Company or otherwise establishes their ownership of the Common Shares, in which case the transferee may vote those Common Shares at the Meeting.

The Company's articles provide that the quorum for the transaction of business at the Meeting consists of two persons who are, or who represent by proxy, Shareholders who, in the agreement hold at least 5% of the issued shares entitled to be voted at the Meeting.

To the knowledge of the Board and the executive officers of the Company, as of the Record Date, no person, firm or company beneficially owns, controls or directs, directly or indirectly, voting securities of the Company carrying ten percent (10%) or more of the voting rights attached to all issued and outstanding Common Shares, other than as set out below:

Name of Shareholder	Number of Common Shares Beneficially Owned, or over which Control or Direction is Exercised, Directly or Indirectly	Percentage of Common Shares Beneficially Owned, or over which Control or Direction is Exercised, Directly or Indirectly
La Mancha Investments S.à r.l.	78,421,780	31.90%
Alpha 1 SPV Limited	34,444,580	14.01%

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

All references to "\$" herein are referring to United States Dollars, unless otherwise noted.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

It is the responsibility of the compensation committee of the Company (the "Compensation Committee") to determine the level of compensation in respect of the Company's senior executives (including to all persons acting as directors or as "Named Executive Officers", as this expression is defined in Form 51-102F6V Named Executive Officers) with a view to providing such executives with a competitive compensation package having regard to performance. Performance is defined to include achievement of the Company's strategic objective of growth, development of the business, enhancement of Shareholder value and attainment of annual goals as set by the Board.

Compensation for executive officers is composed primarily of three components; base salary, performance bonuses (in cash and/or Common Shares) and the granting of Options and performance share units ("PSUs") pursuant to the Company's incentive compensation plan (the "Omnibus Plan"). Performance bonuses are considered from time to time having regard to the above referenced objectives as well as the terms of each officer's employment contract.

With respect to equity issuances, the Chief Executive Officer recommends to the Board the individual equity issuances for each executive officer and director. The Board then takes these recommendations into consideration when making final decisions on compensation for those executive officers. The Board does not use formulas or benchmarks for each grant, but is restricted by the policies of the TSXV and the terms of the Omnibus Plan. Equity issuances under the Omnibus Plan are awarded to executive officers by the Board based upon the level of responsibility and contribution of the individuals towards the Company's goals and objectives. Previous equity issuances to a particular individual will be taken into account when considering future equity issuances to that particular individual.

Risks of Compensation Policies and Practices

The Company's compensation program is designed to provide executive officers incentives for the achievement of near-term and long-term objectives, without motivating them to take unnecessary risk. As part of its review and discussion of executive compensation, the Board noted the following facts that discourage the Company's executives from taking unnecessary or excessive risk:

- the Company's business strategy and related compensation philosophy; and
- the effective balance, in each case, between near-term and long-term focus, corporate and individual performance, and financial and non-financial performance.

Based on this review, the Board believes that the Company's total executive compensation program does not encourage executive officers to take unnecessary or excessive risk.

Compensation Governance

For a discussion on policies and practices by the Board to determine the compensation of the Company's directors and executive officers, see "Executive Compensation – Compensation Discussion and Analysis".

Benefit, Contribution, Pension, Retirement, Deferred Compensation and Actuarial Plans

The Company currently has no defined benefit, defined contribution, pension, retirement, deferred compensation or actuarial plans for its Named Executive Officers or directors of the Company. Elemental Resources Limited ("**ERL**"), a wholly-owned subsidiary registered in England and Wales which employs each of Frederick Bell and David Baker (and formally employed Steven Poulton until he resigned on January 1, 2024, and Sandra Bates until she resigned on May 31, 2024), provides each employee with a pension contribution equal to 10 per cent of gross salary per year. The directors of the company, excluding Frederick Bell, do not receive any pension contributions.

Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation, Excluding Compensation Securities

The following table sets forth the information required under *Form 51-102F6V-Statement of Executive Compensation - Venture* ("**Form 51-102F6V**"), regarding all compensation paid, payable, granted or otherwise provided during the two most recently completed financial years of the Company, to all Named Executive Officers, for the last two financial years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

During its financial year ended December 31, 2023, the following individuals were Named Executive Officers (as defined in applicable securities legislation) of the Company: Frederick Bell, CEO, David Baker, appointed as CFO on January 19, 2023, Matt Anderson, Steven Poulton, appointed as Executive Chairman, and Sandra Bates, appointed as General Counsel. Matt Anderson resigned on January 19, 2022, and Sandra Bates resigned on May 31, 2024. Steven Poulton was a director of Elemental until he resigned on January 1, 2024. Frederick Bell is also a director of the Company. Frederick Bell and Steven Poulton did not receive any additional compensation for acting as directors of the Company.

TABLE OF COMPENSATION EXCLUDING COMPENSATION SECURITIES

	Year			Commit tee or				
Name and Principal Position	Ended December 31	Salary ⁽¹⁾ (\$)	Bonus ⁽¹⁾ (\$)	meeting fees (\$)	Value of perquisit es (\$)	Pension Value ⁽¹⁾ (\$)	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total Compensation (\$)
Frederick Bell	2023	357,008	119,002	-	-	35,700	-	511,710
CEO	2022	339,948	75,118	-	-	33,995	-	449,061
David Baker CFO ⁽²⁾	2023	223,073	58,636	-	-	22,307	-	304,016
	2022	141,048	37,013	-	-	14,105	-	192,166
Steven Poulton	2023	357,008	119,002	-	=	35,700	-	511,710
former Executive Chairman ⁽³⁾	2022	125,997	75,118	-	-	12,579	-	213,693
Matt Anderson	2023	-	-	-	-	-	29,597	29,597
former CFO ⁽⁴⁾	2022	-	-	-	-	-	97,309	97,309
Sandra Bates former	2023	223,073	-	-	-	22,307	83,306	327,173
General Counsel ⁽⁵⁾⁽⁶⁾	2022	74,357	-	-	-	7,436	-	81,793

Notes:

(1) The exchange rate used to calculate these amounts was based on the USD-GBP exchange rate as published by the Bank of England and the USD-CAD exchange rate published by the Bank of Canada on December 29, 2023.

- (2) David Baker was appointed to the position of Chief Financial Officer on January 19, 2023. Prior to this appointment, David Baker was the Executive Vice President of Business Development.
- (3) Steven Poulton was appointed to the position of Executive Chairman on August 8, 2022, and resigned on January 1, 2024
- (4) Matt Anderson resigned as CFO on January 19, 2023. Matt Anderson is a Managing Director of Malaspina Consultants Inc., a company providing consulting, accounting and administrative services to resource issuers, and the company through which Matt Anderson was engaged as a consultant to the Company providing Chief Financial Officer services. The compensation included approximately 50% for Mr. Anderson and 50% for other Malaspina personnel.
- (5) Sandra Bates was appointed to the position of General Counsel in September 2022 and resigned on May 31, 2024.
- (6) All Other Compensation includes fees paid to Sandra Bates' consulting company, Aldeia International Limited for transaction advice relating to the merger between the Company and Altus Strategies plc, completed on August 16, 2022.

TABLE OF DIRECTOR COMPENSATION EXCLUDING COMPENSATION SECURITIES

Frederick Bell and former Executive Chairman Steven Poulton did not receive any additional compensation as directors of the Company and accordingly, no information with respect to their role as directors is disclosed below.

Name and Principal Position	Year Ended December 31	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Committee or meeting fees (\$)	Value of perquisites (\$)	Pension Value (\$)	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total Compensation (\$)
Frederick Bell	2023	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(Director)	2022	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Steven Poulton (former	2023	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Executive Chairman)	2022	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Peter Williams	2023	34,266	-	-	-	-	-	34,266
(Director)	2022	38,877	-	19,208	-	-	-	58,085
Martin Turenne	2023	34,266	-	10,563	-	-	-	44,828
(Director)	2022	51,439	-	30,733	-	-	-	82,172
John Robins	2023	34,266	-	6,404	-	-	-	40,670
(Director)	2022	41,835	-	19,208	-	-	-	61,043
David	2023	34,266	-	19,212	-	-	-	53,478
Netherway (Director)	2022(1)	31,150	-	-	-	-	-	31,150
Robert Milroy	2023	34,266	-	16,967	-	-	-	51,232
(Director)	2022(1)	20,600	-	-	-	-	-	26,950
Karim Nasr	2023	34,266	-	-	-	-	-	34,266
(former Director)	2022(1)	26,950	-	-	-	-	-	20,600

Notes:

(1) Amount from the date of appointment to the Board on August 8, 2022.

Outstanding Compensation Securities

No compensation securities were granted and issued to Named Executive Officers and directors by the Company in the financial year ended December 31, 2023.

Termination and Change of Control Benefits

Other than as described below, as of the date of this Circular, the Company is not a party to any contract, agreement, plan or arrangement with its Named Executive Officers that provide for payments to Named Executive Officers at, following, or in connection with any termination (whether voluntary, involuntary or constructive), resignation or retirement, or as a result of a change in control of the Company or a change in a Named Executive Officers' responsibilities.

Frederick Bell, Chief Executive Officer

ERL is party to an employment agreement with Frederick Bell (the "**Bell Agreement**"). The Bell Agreement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms. The Bell Agreement provides for a salary of £336,086, exclusive of bonuses, benefits and other compensation payable (if any), and subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms of the Bell Agreement or as may be agreed to by the parties. The Bell Agreement may be terminated by Frederick Bell by giving ERL three months' prior written notice of his intention to do so. The Bell Agreement may be terminated by the Company by giving Frederick Bell three months' prior written notice of its intention to do so and making a payment of twelve months of salary and most recent bonus, which as of the Record Date, would have been £448,115, with termination as of immediate effect.

Pursuant to the terms of the Bell Agreement, in the event there is a "Change in Control" (as such term is defined in the Bell Agreement) which results in the dismissal or constructive dismissal during the first six months from the date of the Change of Control, Frederick Bell is entitled to receive a payment of twenty-four months of salary and most recent bonus, which as of the Record Date, would have been £784,201, and Frederick Bell is entitled for a period of one year in accordance with the terms of ERL's Omnibus Plan to exercise any stock options or PSUs granted to him and then outstanding as of the date of such election

Should the Bell Agreement be terminated by ERL for cause or voluntarily terminated by Frederick Bell, Frederick Bell is not entitled to any termination or severance payment other than payment by ERL of compensation earned by Frederick Bell to the date of termination.

David Baker, Chief Financial Officer

ERL is party to a services agreement with David Baker (the "Baker Agreement"). The Baker Agreement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms. The Baker Agreement provides for a salary of £210,000, exclusive of bonuses, benefits and other compensation payable (if any), and subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms of the Baker Agreement or as may be agreed to by the parties. The Baker Agreement may be terminated by either party by providing three month's prior written notice. Once notice of termination has been provided, the Company in its sole discretion reserves the right to make a payment in lieu of the notice, which will be for a sum equivalent to David Baker's salary for the duration of the notice period, which as of the Record Date, would have been £52,500, with termination upon immediate effect. Upon termination, David Baker is subject to "Restrictive Covenants" (as such term is defined in the Baker Agreement), which includes non-solicitation and non-compete restrictions for twelve months.

Pursuant to the terms of the Baker Agreement, in the event there is a "Change in Control" (as such term is defined in the Baker Agreement) which results in the resignation, dismissal or constructive dismissal during the first six months from the date of the Change of Control, David Baker is entitled to receive a payment of twenty-four months of salary and most recent bonus, which as of the Record Date, would have been £490,000.

Steven Poulton, Executive Chairman

On January 1, 2024, Steven Poulton resigned from the Company, and accordingly, the employment agreement between ERL and Steven Poulton was terminated. Steven Poulton was not entitled to any termination or severance payment other than payment by ERL of compensation earned by Steven Poulton to the date of termination.

Sandra Bates, General Counsel

On May 31, 2024, Sandra Bates resigned from the Company, and accordingly, the employment agreement between ERL and Sandra Bates was terminated. Upon resignation, Sandra Bates was not entitled to any termination or severance payment other than payment by ERL of compensation earned by Sandra Bates to the date of termination.

OMNIBUS PLAN

Relevant disinterested Shareholders, as described under the heading "Votes Necessary to Pass Resolutions" of this Circular, will be asked to consider and, if deemed advisable, pass an ordinary resolution approving and ratifying the Company's Omnibus Plan including (i) the setting-aside, allotting and reserving 10% of the Company's outstanding Common Shares from time to time for issuance pursuant to the exercise of stock options granted under the Omnibus Plan and (ii) an amendment to the Omnibus Plan to increase the number of Common

Shares that may be issued under the "fixed 10% plan" with respect to awards of restricted share units and performance share units by 1,500,000 Common Shares (the "Amendment"), and the setting-aside, allotting and reserving an aggregate of an additional 1,500,000 Common Shares from time to time for issuance pursuant to such awards. For greater certainty with respect to the Amendment, the aggregate number of Common Shares available for issuance pursuant to the settlement of Share Units (as defined below), shall not exceed the lesser of (i) 10% of the Company's outstanding Common Shares less the number of Options outstanding; and (ii) 6,895,109 Common Shares (which includes 5,395,109 Common Shares, underlying previous grants of Share Units), less the number of Share Units redeemed for Common Shares. The full text of the Omnibus Plan is set out in Schedule "C" to the Circular.

On October 28, 2024, the Board approved, subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Meeting, the Amendment to increase the number of Share Units that may be granted under the Omnibus Plan, of up to 1,500,000 Common Shares. The Board is of the view that the Amendment will maximize the number of Common Shares available for issuance and provide the Company with increased flexibility to continue to retain and motivate officers, directors, employees and consultants, while providing room for future growth.

The Omnibus Plan was adopted by the Board on July 28th, 2020 and permits the grant of Options, Restricted Share Units ("**RSUs**") and PSUs, (individually, or collectively, an "**Award**") to eligible Participants (as defined in the Omnibus Plan, meaning any director, officer, employee or consultant of the Company). The Omnibus Plan will continue to be effective until the date it is terminated by the Board in accordance with the Omnibus Plan.

The purpose of the Omnibus Plan is to: (i) provide the Company with a mechanism to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company and its affiliates; (ii) align the interests of Participants with that of other Shareholders of the Company generally; and (iii) enable and encourage Participants to participate in the long-term growth of the Company through the acquisition of Common Shares as long-term investments.

Under the Omnibus Plan, the maximum number of Common Shares issuable from treasury pursuant to Awards shall not exceed 10% of the total outstanding Common Shares from time to time less the number of Common Shares issuable pursuant to any "Share Units" (being RSUs or PSUs) issued under the Omnibus Plan and any other security-based compensation arrangements of the Company, including the amended and restated stock option plan of Fengro Industries Corp. dated April 18, 2016. For greater certainty, the aggregate number of Common Shares available for issuance pursuant to settlement of Options shall not exceed 10% of the Company's outstanding share capital. The Omnibus Plan with respect to the Options is a "rolling plan" and as a result, any and all increases in the number of issued and outstanding Common Shares will result in an increase to the number of Options for issuance under the Omnibus Plan. Shares in respect of which Options have not been exercised and are no longer subject to being purchased pursuant to the terms of any Options shall be available for further Options under the Omnibus Plan. In accordance with the Amendment and for so long as the Company is listed on the TSXV or on another exchange that requires the Company to fix the number of Common Shares to be issued in settlement of Share Units, the additional number of Common Shares available for issuance pursuant to the settlement of Share Units shall be 1,500,000 Common Shares. The fixed number of 1,500,000 Common Shares will be in addition to 5,395,109 Common Shares that were previously granted as Share Units. When aggregated with the previous number of Common Shares allotted and reserved under the "fixed 10% plan" and approved by Shareholders, the total number of reserved Common Shares is 6,895,109. The maximum number of Common Shares for which Awards may be issued to any one Participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 5% of the outstanding Common Shares, calculated on the date an Award is granted to the Participant, unless the Company obtains disinterested Shareholder approval as required by the policies of the TSXV. The aggregate number of Common Shares for which Awards may be issued to any one Consultant (as defined by the TSXV) within any 12-month period shall not exceed 2% of the outstanding Common Shares, calculated on the date an Award is granted to the Consultant. The aggregate number of Common Shares for which Options may be issued to any company or individual ("Persons") retained to provide Investor Relations Activities (as defined by the TSXV) within any 12-month period shall not exceed 2% of the outstanding Common Shares, calculated on the date an Option is granted to such Persons.

Other than Options, Awards may not be granted to Persons retained to provide Investor Relations Activities, except if such person is also an employee of the Company.

Unless disinterested Shareholder approval as required by the policies of the TSXV is obtained: (i) the maximum number of Common Shares for which Awards may be issued to insiders (as a group) and their associates (as defined in TSXV Policies, collectively, the "**Insiders**") at any point in time shall not exceed 10% of the

outstanding Common Shares; and (ii) the aggregate number of Awards granted to Insiders (as a group), within any 12-month period, shall not exceed 10% of the outstanding Common Shares, calculated at the date an Award is granted to any Insider.

The Omnibus Plan provides for customary adjustments or substitutions, as applicable, in the number of Common Shares that may be issued under the Omnibus Plan in the event of a merger, arrangement, amalgamation, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, separation, stock dividend, extraordinary dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, split up, spin-off or other distribution of stock or property of the Company, combination of securities, exchange of securities, dividend in kind, or other like change in capital structure or distribution (other than normal cash dividends) to the Shareholders, or any similar corporate event or transaction.

If there is a Change of Control (as defined in the Omnibus Plan), any Awards held by a Participant shall automatically vest following such Change of Control, on the Termination Date (as defined in the Omnibus Plan), if the Participant is an employee, officer or a director and their employment, or officer or director position is terminated within 12 months following the Change of Control, provided that no acceleration of Awards shall occur in the case of a Participant that was retained to provide Investor Relations Activities unless the approval of the TSXV is either obtained or not required. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an actual or potential Change of Control of the Company, the Board may, in its sole discretion, without the necessity or requirement for the agreement of any Participant: (i) accelerate, conditionally or otherwise, on such terms as it sees fit, the vesting date of any Awards; (ii) permit the conditional redemption or exercise of any Awards, on such terms as it sees fit; (iii) otherwise amend or modify the terms of any Awards, including for greater certainty by (1) permitting Participants to exercise or redeem any Awards to assist the Participants to participate in the actual or potential Change of Control, or (2) providing that any Awards exercised or exercised shall be exercisable or redeemed for, in lieu of Common Shares, such property (including shares of another entity or cash) that Shareholders of the Company will receive in the Change of Control; and (iv) terminate, following the successful completion of a Change of Control, on such terms as it sees fit, the Awards not exercised or redeemed prior to the successful completion of such Change of Control.

Incentive Awards

Options

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Omnibus Plan and any policies of the TSXV, the Board may grant Options to Participants in such amounts and upon such terms (including the exercise price, duration of the Options, the number of Common Shares to which the Option pertains, and the conditions, if any, upon which an Option shall become vested and exercisable) as the Board shall determine.

The exercise price of the Options will be determined by the Board at the time any Option is granted. In no event will such exercise price be lower than the last closing price of the Common Shares on the TSXV less any discount permitted by the rules or policies of the TSXV at the time the Option is granted. Such price upon exercise of any Option shall be payable to the Company in full in cash, certified cheque or wire transfer.

Unless otherwise specified in an Award Agreement (as defined in the Omnibus Plan), and subject to any provisions of the Omnibus Plan or the applicable Award Agreement relating to acceleration of vesting of Options, Options shall vest subject to TSXV policies, and the Board may, in its sole discretion, determine the time during which an Option shall vest and the method of vesting, or that no vesting restriction shall exist. If the Board does not determine a vesting schedule at the time of grant of any particular Option, such Option shall be exercisable in whole at any time, or in part from time to time, during the term of the Option, subject to the applicable requirements of the TSXV. Options issued to any Persons retained to provide Investor Relations Activities must vest in stages over a period of not less than 12 months, with no more than 1/4 of the Options vesting in any three-month period.

Subject to any requirements of the TSXV, the Board may determine the expiry date of each Option. Subject to a limited extension if an Option expires during a black out period, Options may be exercised for a period of up to ten (10) years after the grant date, provided that: (i) upon a Participant's termination for cause, all Options, whether vested or not, as at the date on which a Participant ceases to be eligible to participate under the Omnibus Plan (the "**Termination Date**") as a result of termination of employment, will automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited; (ii) upon the death of a Participant, all unvested Options as at the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately vest, and all vested Options will continue to be subject to the Omnibus Plan and be exercisable for a period of 12 months after the Termination Date; (iii) in the case of the disability of a

Participant, all Options shall remain and continue to vest (and are exercisable) in accordance with the terms of the Omnibus Plan for a period of 12 months after the Termination Date, provided that any Options that have not been exercised (whether vested or not) within 12 months after the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited on such date; (iv) in the case of the retirement of a Participant, the Board shall have discretion, with respect to such Options, to determine whether to accelerate the vesting of such Options, cancel such Options with or without payment and determine how long, if at all, such Options may remain outstanding following the Termination Date, provided, however, that in no event shall such Options be exercisable for more than 12 months after the Termination Date; and (v) in all other cases where a Participant ceases to be eligible under the Omnibus Plan, including a termination without cause or a voluntary resignation, unless otherwise determined by the Board, all unvested Options shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited as of the Termination Date, and all vested Options will continue to be subject to the Omnibus Plan and be exercisable for a period of 90 days after the Termination Date, provided that any Options that have not been exercised within 90 days after the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited on such date.

Restricted Share Units

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Omnibus Plan and any policies of the TSXV, the Board may grant RSUs to Participants in such amounts and upon such terms (including time-based restrictions on vesting, restrictions under applicable laws or under the requirements of the TSXV) as the Board shall determine.

When and if RSUs become payable, the Participant issued such RSUs shall be entitled to receive payment from the Company in settlement of such RSU: (i) in a number of Common Shares (issued from treasury) equal to the number of RSUs being settled, or (ii) in any other form, all as determined by the Board at its sole discretion. The Board's determination regarding the form of payout shall be set forth or reserved for later determination in the Award Agreement for the grant of the RSUs.

Unless otherwise specified in an Award Agreement granting RSUs, RSUs shall vest at the discretion of the Board, subject to the policies of the TSXV, provided that, and subject to the Board's discretion: (i) upon a Participant's termination for cause, all RSUs, whether vested (if not yet paid out) or not as at the Termination Date will automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited; (ii) upon the death of a Participant, all unvested RSUs as at the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately vest and be paid out to the Participant's estate; (iii) in the case of the disability of a Participant, all RSUs shall remain and continue to vest in accordance with the terms of the Omnibus Plan for a period of 12 months after the Termination Date, provided that any RSUs that have not been vested within 12 months after the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited on such date; (iv) in the case of the retirement of a Participant, the Board shall have discretion, with respect to such RSUs, to determine whether to accelerate the vesting of such RSUs, cancel such RSUs with or without payment and determine how long, if at all, such RSUs may remain outstanding following the Termination Date, provided, however, that in no event shall such RSUs be exercisable for more than 12 months after the Termination Date; and (v) in all other cases where a Participant ceases to be eligible under the Omnibus Plan, including a termination without cause or a voluntary resignation, unless otherwise determined by the Board, all unvested RSUs shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited as of the Termination Date, and all vested RSUs will be paid out in accordance with the Omnibus Plan. In no case will any RSU vest or payment be made in respect of that RSU later than December 15th of the third calendar year following the year in which that RSU was granted, and any RSU cannot vest earlier than one year after the date of grant.

Participants holding RSUs may, if the Board so determines, be credited with dividends paid with respect of the underlying Common Shares or dividend equivalents while they are so held in a manner determined by the Board in its sole discretion. Any dividend equivalents shall not apply to an Award unless specifically provided for in the RSU Award Agreement. The Board may apply any restrictions to the dividends or dividend equivalents that the Board deems appropriate. The Board, in its sole discretion, may determine the form of payment of dividends or dividend equivalents, including cash, shares or RSUs, and may settle such entitlements with cash where it does not have sufficient Common Shares available to satisfy the obligation in Common Shares, or where the issuance of Common Shares would result in the Company breaching a limit on grants or issuances contained in the Omnibus Plan.

Performance Share Units

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Omnibus Plan and any policies of the TSXV, the Board may grant PSUs to Participants in such amounts and upon such terms (including the performance criteria applicable to such PSUs)

as the Board shall determine. Each PSU shall have an initial value equal to the fair market value of a Common Share on the date of grant. After the applicable performance period (as defined in the Omnibus Plan, meaning the period of time during which the assigned performance criteria must be met in order to determine the degree of payout and/or vesting with respect to an Award) has ended, the holder of a PSU shall be entitled to receive payout on the value and number of PSUs, determined as a function of the extent to which the corresponding performance criteria have been achieved. Other than as determined by the Board in writing, in no event will delivery of such Common Share or other form of payment or consideration under a PSU be made later than the earlier of: (i) three months after the close of the year in which such conditions or restrictions were satisfied or lapsed and (ii) December 31st of the third year following the year of the grant date, and any PSU cannot vest earlier than one year after the date of grant.

Subject to the terms of the Omnibus Plan, the Board, in its sole discretion, may pay earned PSUs in the form of a number of Common Shares issued from treasury equal to the number of earned PSUs at the end of the applicable performance period. Any Common Shares may be granted subject to any restrictions deemed appropriate by the Board. Participants holding PSUs may, if the Board so determines, be credited with dividends paid with respect of the underlying Common Shares or dividend equivalents while they are so held in a manner determined by the Board in its sole discretion. Any dividend equivalents shall not apply to an Award unless specifically provided for in the PSU Award Agreement. The Board may apply any restrictions to the dividends or dividend equivalents that the Board deems appropriate. The Board, in its sole discretion, may determine the form of payment of dividends or dividend equivalents, including cash, shares or PSUs, and may settle such entitlements with cash where it does not have sufficient Common Shares available to satisfy the obligation in Common Shares, or where the issuance of Common Shares would result in the Company breaching a limit on grants or issuances contained in the Omnibus Plan.

The extent to which a Participant shall have the right to retain PSUs following termination of the Participant's employment or other relationship with the Company shall be set out in each PSU Award Agreement and determined in the sole discretion of the Board, and need not be uniform among all PSUs issued pursuant to the Omnibus Plan, and may reflect distinctions based on the reasons for termination, provided that the provisions shall comply with the applicable rules of the TSXV.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth the Company's compensation plans under which equity securities are authorized for issuance as at December 31, 2023.

Plan Category	Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights	Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding options, warrants and rights	Number of securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans	
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders	PSUs – 500,000 Options ⁽¹⁾ – 825,000 Options ⁽²⁾ – 3,733,286 Options ⁽³⁾ – 6,790,000 Options ⁽⁴⁾ – 75,000	$\begin{array}{c} PSUs - N/A \\ Options^{(1)} - C\$1.50 \\ Options^{(2)} - C\$1.91 \\ Options^{(3)} - C\$1.40 \\ Options^{(4)} - C\$1.40 \\ \end{array}$	PSUs and RSUs – 2,500,000 Options – 11,909,039	
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders	Nil	Nil	Nil	
Total	PSUs – 500,000 Options ⁽¹⁾ – 825,000 Options ⁽²⁾ – 3,733,286 Options ⁽³⁾ – 6,790,000 Options ⁽⁴⁾ – 75,000	PSUs – N/A Options ⁽¹⁾ – C\$1.50 Options ⁽²⁾ – C\$1.91 Options ⁽³⁾ – C\$1.40 Options ⁽³⁾ – C\$1.40	PSUs and RSUs – 2,500,000 Options – 11,909,039	

Notes:

(1) Granted on July 28, 2020.

- (2) 5,405,396 legacy options were inherited by the Company for a weighted-average exercise price of C\$1.91, pursuant to the merger between the Company and Altus Strategies plc, completed on August 16, 2022. The legacy options are still governed by Altus Strategies plc's former option scheme and not governed by the Company's Omnibus Plan
- (3) Granted on December 20, 2022.
- (4) Granted on May 24, 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE

General

The Board views effective corporate governance as an essential element for the effective and efficient operation of the Company. The Company believes that effective corporate governance improves corporate performance and benefits all of its Shareholders. The following statement of corporate governance practices sets out the Board's review of the Company's governance practices relative to National Instrument 58-101 - *Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices* ("NI 58-101") and National Policy 58-201 - *Corporate Governance Guidelines*.

Board of Directors

The Board maintains the exercise of independent supervision over management by ensuring that the majority of its directors are independent. Frederick Bell, CEO, has been determined to not be independent by virtue of his position as CEO. As La Mancha Investments S.à r.l. ("La Mancha") appointees to the Board, Vincent Benoit and Jack Lunnon have been determined not to be independent by virtue of La Mancha's shareholdings in the Company and their positions as senior employees of La Mancha. As an AlphaStream appointee to the Board, Prashant Francis has been determined not to be independent by virtue of Alpha 1 SPV Limited's (an affiliate of AlphaStream) shareholdings in the Company and his position as senior employee of AlphaStream.

Standing Committees of the Board

The Company has an Audit Committee comprised of Vincent Benoit, Robert Milroy, David Netherway, and Martin Turenne. The Company has a Compensation Committee comprised of Jack Lunnon, Robert Milroy, David Netherway, and John Robins.

Martin Turenne is the Chair of the Audit Committee of the Company, and Robert Milroy is the Chair of the Compensation Committee of the Company.

Other Public Company Directorships

The following members of the Board currently hold directorships in other reporting issuers as set forth below.

Name	Name of Reporting Issuer	Exchange	Position
Peter	African Gold Ltd.	ASX	Director
Williams	Alderan Resources Limited	ASX	Director
	Benz Mining Ltd.	TSXV, ASX	Director
Martin	Iartin FPX Nickel Corp.		CEO and Director
Turenne			
John Robins	Fireweed Metals Corp.	TSXV	Director
	K2 Gold Corporation	TSXV	Executive Chairman and Director
David	Kore Potash Plc	ASX, AIM, JSE	Director
Netherway			
Vincent	Falcon Energy Materials plc	TSXV	Director
Benoit			

Orientation and Continuing Education of Board Members

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for ensuring that new directors are provided with an orientation program, which includes information regarding the role of the Board, its committees and the duties and obligations of directors; the business and operations of the Company; documents from recent meetings of the Board; and opportunities for meetings and discussion with senior management and other directors.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Board promotes ethical business conduct through the nomination of individuals for election to the Board that it considers ethical, by considering potential conflicts of interest based on other directorships and/or outside offices held by director nominees, and by having a majority of independent Board members. Board members are also required to disclose material interests in proposed transactions that involve the Company.

Nomination of Directors

The size of the Board is reviewed annually when the Board considers the number of directors to recommend for election at the annual general meeting of Shareholders. The Board takes into account the number of directors required to carry out the Board duties effectively, and to maintain a diversity of view and experience. In particular, the Board believes that candidates for the Board should have (i) the ability to exercise objectivity and independence in making informed business decisions; (ii) extensive knowledge, experience and judgment; (iii) integrity; (iv) loyalty to the best interests of the Company and its shareholders generally; (v) a willingness to devote the extensive time necessary to fulfill a director's duties; and (vi) the ability to contribute to the diversity of perspectives present in board deliberations.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Compensation Committee Mandate

The Company's Compensation Committee is comprised of four directors, the majority of whom are persons determined by the Board to be independent directors within the meaning of NI 58-101. The Compensation Committee is comprised of Robert Milroy (Chair), Jack Lunnon, David Netherway, and John Robins. The Board believes that the Compensation Committee can conduct its activities in an objective manner.

The Board believes that the members of the Compensation Committee individually and collectively possess the requisite knowledge, skill and experience in governance and compensation matters, including human resource management, executive compensation matters and general business leadership, to fulfill the committee's mandate. All members of the Compensation Committee have substantial knowledge and experience as current and former senior executives of large and complex organizations and on the boards of other publicly traded entities.

The Board has adopted a written charter setting forth the purpose, composition, authority and responsibility of the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee's purpose is to assist the Board in:

- The performance, evaluation and compensation of senior executives;
- Developing a compensation structure for senior executives including salaries, annual and longterm incentive plans including plans involving share issuances and other share-based awards;
- Establishing policies and procedures designed to identify and mitigate risks associated with our compensation policies and practices;
- Reviewing and, if appropriate, recommending to the Board the approval of any adoption, amendment or termination of our incentive or equity-based compensation arrangements (and the aggregate number of Common Shares to be reserved for issuance thereunder), and overseeing their administration and discharging any duties imposed on the committee by any such arrangements; and
- Assessing the compensation of the directors.

The Board is responsible for approving the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer, as well as, based on the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer, the compensation of other executive officers, including the Named Executive Officers (as defined herein).

Further particulars of the process by which compensation for executive officers is determined is provided under "Executive Compensation".

Trading Restrictions

All of the Company's directors, officers, employees, consultants, contractors and agents are subject to its securities trading policy. This policy prohibits trading in the Company's securities while in possession of material undisclosed information about the Company. Further, the Company's securities trading policy prohibits the

communication of material non-public information, from insiders to any person, including family or friends. Insiders are also prohibited from making any recommendations or express opinions on the basis of material non-public information for the purpose of or in the context of trading in the Company's securities of any other public company when having knowledge has not been generally disclosed.

The Company observes blackout periods prior to quarterly and annual financial statement announcements. Regular blackout periods commence (a) two calendar weeks before the scheduled release of the Company's quarterly financial statements; or (b) four calendar weeks before the scheduled release of the Company's annual financial statements, and end at the opening of the market on the second full trading day following the date of the public disclosure of the applicable financial statements. In addition, the Company may deem it appropriate to apply an extraordinary blackout period by issuing notice instructing specified individuals not to trade in the securities of the Company or any other publicly-owned company under special circumstances and until otherwise notified.

Assessment of Directors, the Board and Board Committees

The Board monitors the adequacy of information given to directors, the communications between the Board and management and the strategic direction and processes of the Board, its Audit Committee and Compensation Committee, to satisfy itself that the Board, its committees and its individual directors are performing effectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE

The following information is provided in accordance with Form 52-110F2 under National Instrument 52-110 – *Audit Committees* ("NI 52-110").

Audit Committee Mandate

The Audit Committee is a committee of the Board established for the purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company and annual external audits of the consolidated financial statements. The Audit Committee has formally set out its responsibilities and composition requirements in fulfilling its oversight in relation to the Company's internal accounting standards and practices, financial information, accounting systems and procedures. See Schedule "F" hereto for a copy of the Audit Committee charter of the Company.

The Audit Committee consists of four directors, being Vincent Benoit, Robert Milroy, and David Netherway, together with the committee chair, Martin Turenne. The majority of Audit Committee members are persons determined by the Board to be "independent" directors and each Audit Committee member is "financially literate" within the meaning of NI 52-110. Each Audit Committee member has an understanding of the accounting principles used to prepare financial statements and varied experience as to the general application of such accounting principles, as well as an understanding of the internal controls and procedures necessary for financial reporting.

The Board has adopted a written charter, in the form set forth in Schedule "F", setting forth the purpose, composition, authority and responsibility of the Audit Committee, consistent with NI 52-110. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight of:

- Financial statements and financial reporting processes;
- Risk management initiatives;
- Systems of internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures;
- The annual independent audit of our financial statements;
- Legal and regulatory compliance and compliance with the Company's whistleblower policy;
- Related party transactions; and
- Public disclosure of financial information extracted or derived from our financial statements.

It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to maintain free and open means of communication between the Audit Committee, the external auditors and management of the Company. The Audit Committee has been given full access to the Company's management and records and external auditors as necessary to carry out these responsibilities. The Audit Committee has the authority to carry out such special investigations as it sees fit in respect of any matters within its various roles and responsibilities. The Company provides appropriate funding,

as determined by the Audit Committee, for the payment of compensation to the independent auditor for the purpose of rendering or issuing an audit report and to any advisors employed by the Audit Committee.

External Auditor Service Fees

The aggregate fees incurred by the Company's external auditors for each of the last two fiscal years for audit fees are as follows:

Financial Year Ending	Auditor	Audit Fees ⁽¹⁾	Audit Related Fees ⁽²⁾	Tax Fees ⁽³⁾	All Other Fees ⁽⁴⁾	Total
2023	PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP	\$155,736	\$57,706	-	-	\$212,082
2022	PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP	\$162,145	\$45,314	\$12,450	\$42,318	\$262,227

Notes:

- (1) The aggregate audit fees incurred.
- (2) The aggregate fees incurred for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company's financial statements and which are not included under the heading "External Audit Fee Service Fees".
- (3) Fees incurred for tax consultation.
- (4) The aggregate fees incurred for products and services other than as set out under the headings "Audit Fees", "Audit Related Fees" and "Tax Fees".

Pursuant to Section 6.1 of NI 52-110, the Company is exempt from the requirements of Part 3 (Composition of the Audit Committee) and Part 5 (Reporting Obligations) of NI 52-110.

MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON AT THE MEETING

1. Financial Statements

The audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023, and auditor's report and management's discussion and analysis thereon ("**Financial Statements**") will be tabled at the Meeting. A copy of the Financial Statements is available at the request of Shareholders and on the Company's website at www.elementalaltus.com. No formal action will be taken at the Meeting to approve the Financial Statements.

2. <u>Election of Directors</u>

The Board has approved the nomination of Frederick Bell (CEO), John Robins, Peter Williams, Martin Turenne, David Netherway, Robert Milroy, Prashant Francis, Jack Lunnon and Vincent Benoit (collectively, the "Elemental Nominees") for election as directors to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual meeting of Shareholders, or until the director's successor is duly elected or appointed, unless the director's office is earlier vacated or the director becomes disqualified to act as a director. Messrs. Benoit and Lunnon are nominees of La Mancha and are nominated by management of the Company in accordance with the IRA. Mr. Francis is a nominee of AlphaStream and is nominated by management of the Company in accordance with the SPA. Each Elemental Nominee is currently a director of the Company and has been since the dates indicated in the table below under the heading "Elemental Nominees".

Management does not contemplate that any of the Elemental Nominees will be unable to serve as a director, but if that should occur for any reason prior to the Meeting, the persons named in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy reserve the right to vote for other nominees at their discretion.

Elemental Nominees

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the Elemental Nominees, their respective positions with the Company, principal occupations or employment during the last five years, the dates on which they became

directors of the Company and the approximate number of Common Shares beneficially owned by them, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised by them as of the Record Date. Management has been informed that each of the Elemental Nominees listed below is willing to serve as a director if re-elected.

Name and Municipality of Residence	Position with the Company	Date of which they became a director with the Company	Principal Occupation for the Past Five Years	Number of Common Shares Beneficially Owned, or over which Control or Direction is Exercised, Directly or Indirectly ⁽¹⁾
Frederick Bell ⁽⁴⁾ London, UK	Non-Independent Director and Chief Executive Officer	July 28, 2020	Managing Director of the Company, and its predecessor, since July 2016.	3,086,423
Martin Turenne ⁽²⁾ British Columbia, Canada	Independent Director	July 28, 2020	Chief Executive Officer of FPX Nickel Corp from December 2015 to present.	102,581
Peter Williams ⁽⁵⁾ Henley Beach, South Australia	Independent Director	July 28, 2020	Director of Boss Resources from August 2013 through February 2020. Director of Superior Lake Resources from February 2018 until February 2020. Director of African Gold Ltd. from February 4, 2021 to present. Director of Benz Mining from September 16, 2021 to present. Managing Director of Alderan Resources from May 2019 to March 22, 2021, and Director from March 22, 2021 to present.	3,266,054

Name and Municipality of Residence	Position with the Company	Date of which they became a director with the Company	Principal Occupation for the Past Five Years	Number of Common Shares Beneficially Owned, or over which Control or Direction is Exercised, Directly or Indirectly ⁽¹⁾
John Robins ⁽³⁾ British Columbia, Canada	Independent Director	July 28, 2020	Director of Great Bear Resources. Director of Great Bear Royalties. Director of Fireweed Metals. Director and Executive Chairman of K2 Gold.	3,032,625
David Netherway ⁽²⁾ (3) Gauteng, South Africa	Independent Director	August 8, 2022	Chairman, Altus Strategies plc Director, Canyon Resources Ltd Chairman, Kilo Goldmines Ltd ⁽⁶⁾ Director, Kore Potash Plc Director, Avesoro Resources Inc. ⁽⁷⁾	1,472,380
Robert Milroy ⁽²⁾⁽³⁾ Guernsey, Channel Islands	Independent Director	August 8, 2022	Chairman, Milroy Capital Ltd	356,400
Prashant Francis ⁽⁸⁾ Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates	Non-Independent Director	October 29, 2024	Co-founder and co-Chief Executive Officer of AlphaStream Limited between 2021 – Present Co-founder and co-Chief Executive Officer of Portman Partners between 2019 – 2021	Nil

Name and Municipality of Residence	Position with the Company	Date of which they became a director with the Company	Principal Occupation for the Past Five Years	Number of Common Shares Beneficially Owned, or over which Control or Direction is Exercised, Directly or Indirectly ⁽¹⁾
Jack Lunnon ⁽³⁾⁽⁹⁾ Milton Keynes, UK	Non-Independent Director	January 2, 2024	La Mancha Resource Capital LLP, VP Geology, from 2021 Roscoe Postle Associates, Consultant Geologist, from 2016 to 2021	Nil
Vincent Benoit ⁽²⁾⁽⁹⁾ London, UK	Non-Independent Director	January 2, 2024	La Mancha Resource Capital LLP, Managing Partner and Co-Chief Investment Officer	Nil

Notes:

- (1) Common Shares beneficially owned or over which control or direction is exercised was provided by the respective individuals through publicly disclosed information available on SEDI as of October 30, 2024.
- (2) Member of the Audit Committee. Martin Turenne is the chair of the Audit Committee.
- (3) Member of the Compensation Committee. Robert Milroy is the chair of the Compensation Committee.
- (4) Frederick Bell was first appointed as a director of Elemental Royalties Limited, the Company's predecessor entity as of July 15, 2016.
- (5) Peter Williams was first appointed as a director of Elemental Royalties Limited, the Company's predecessor entity as of January 24, 2017.
- (6) Until March 2020.
- (7) Until January 2020.
- (8) Prashant Francis who is a senior employee of AlphaStream was appointed to the Board as director nominee of AlphaStream and has a material relationship with the Company by virtue of Alpha 1 SPV Limited's shareholdings in the Company, which is an affiliate of AlphaStream.
- (9) Vincent Benoit and Jack Lunnon, each of whom is a senior employee of La Mancha, were appointed to the Board as director nominees of La Mancha and have a material relationship with the Company by virtue of La Mancha's shareholdings in the Company.

Biographies of Current Management and the Elemental Nominees

Below are biographies for Elemental's current management team and each of the Elemental Nominees.

Frederick Bell – Chief Executive Officer and Director

Frederick co-founded the Company in 2016 following his role as Managing Director of a listed gold exploration company, Goldcrest Resources plc, where he assembled a portfolio of gold licences in northeast Ghana to take public on the AIM stock exchange. He has wide experience in the mining industry, including as General Manager of Resource Star Limited, an ASX-listed uranium company. Frederick received the 'Young Rising Star' Award at Mines & Money 2018, obtained an Honours Master of History at the University of Edinburgh and is on the Committee of Young Mining Professionals in London.

Peter Williams - Director

Peter was the first Manager of WMC Geoscience Technology before he became a founding member of Independence Group Limited. He was a founding director of Ampella Mining Ltd., a vendor of Gryphon Minerals' Wahgnion Gold Project and involved in the project generation for Papillion's Mali Gold projects, including Fekole, and did the generative work which led to the discovery of Seguela in Cote D'Ivoire, and was involved in the start up of Bellevue Gold (ASX). Peter co-founded the International Resource Sector Intelligence company, Intierra RMG Ptd Limited (now part of S&P Global Market Intelligence), and also co-founded the first hard rock mineral seismic company in the world, HiSeis Pty. Peter is a co-founder of Portable PPB, and is the co-founder of Vaka Health Foundation and the Pan African Endometriosis Organisation. He is a current board member of Alderan Resources Ltd, African Gold Ltd and Benz Mining Ltd. Peter is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and the Australian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Geology from UNISA and a Master of Science in Geophysical Engineering from the Colorado School of Mines.

Martin Turenne – Director

Martin is a senior executive with over 20 years' experience in the commodities industry, including over 10 years in the mining industry, Martin is currently Chief Executive Officer of FPX Nickel Corp. He was formerly Chief Financial Officer of First Point Minerals Corp. from 2012 to 2015 and previously with KPMG LLP and Methanex Corporation. He is a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

John Robins - Director

John Robins is a professional geologist, prospector and entrepreneur with over 35 years of experience in the mining industry. In 2022 he was the recipient of the AME's Murray Pezim Award for his significant contribution to the financing of exploration and development projects over the last 20 years. He was also awarded the Spud Huestis Award in 2008 for having made significant contributions to mineral exploration in British Columbia and Yukon. Mr. Robins has been involved in several notable discoveries, including the 5M oz Coffee Gold deposit in Yukon, the Three Bluffs gold deposit in the Committee Bay greenstone belt, the Aviat / Churchill diamond districts of Nunavut, and the Great Bear project in north-western Ontario. Through his entrepreneurship, John has been instrumental in over CDN\$3B in M&A activity and has generated over \$1B in direct and indirect mineral expenditures throughout Canada, Latin America, and Australia. Notable recent successes include the sales of Great Bear Resources Ltd. to Kinross Gold Corp. for \$1.8B, Great Bear Royalties Corp. to Royal Gold Inc. for \$200M, and Kaminak Gold Corp. to Goldcorp for \$510M. John's outstanding strategic guidance, technical expertise, strong industry relationships, and steadfast adherence to ethical practices, underpin his status as a leading steward of the junior mining industry. He currently acts as Chairman of Fireweed Metals Corp. and K2 Gold Corp. Mr. Robins is also a Director of the Company and a Strategic Advisor to Kodiak Copper Corp., ValOre Metals Corp., and Prospector Metals Corp.

Robert Milroy – Director

Robert is Chairman of Milroy Capital Ltd, a family investment company that manages various private equity investments in natural resources, engineering, renewable energy and commercial real estate. He has over 40 years of operational experience either as an owner or senior manager in the investment, mining and petroleum industries. He was a founding and Managing Director of the Corazon Capital Group; a Guernsey regulated investment management and stockbroking company for 14 years until its takeover by Canaccord Genuity in 2010. In addition, he was the Managing Director of Eagle Drilling, a drilling firm that specialized in hard rock core drilling in Central and Western Africa. Previously he was a Non-Executive Director of Altus Resource Capital, Altus Global Gold and Chairman of Genuity Energy a UK onshore oil and gas exploration firm. Robert graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) from the University of Manitoba in 1971. He is a member of the Chartered Institute for Securities & Investment.

David Netherway - Director

David is a mining engineer with over 45 years of experience in the mining industry. David was involved in the construction and development of the New Liberty, Iduapriem, Siguiri, Samira Hill and Kiniero gold mines in West Africa and has mining experience in Africa, Australia, China, Canada, India and the Former Soviet Union. David served as the CEO of Shield Mining until its takeover by Gryphon Minerals, prior to that he was the CEO of Toronto listed Afran Mining Corporation, a China focused gold mining company that was sold to Eldorado Gold in 2005. He was also the Chairman of Afferro Mining which was acquired by IMIC in 2013. David has held senior

management positions in a number of mining companies including Golden Shamrock Mines, Ashanti Goldfields and Semafo Inc. He is a former director of Altus Resource Capital, Altus Global Gold, African Aura Mining, Afferro Mining, Avesoro Resources and Kilo Goldmines. Mr. Netherway is currently a non-executive Director of Kore Potash (ASX, AIM & JSE: KP2).

Prashant J. Francis - Director

Prashant Francis has over 20 years of experience in the investment banking, M&A and business development space. Prashant is the co-founder and co-Chief Executive Officer of AlphaStream Limited, a private mining investment company based in Abu Dhabi. In his role at AlphaStream Limited, he has helped build a platform that invests across the capital structure in the mining space globally. Prashant began his career at J.P. Morgan Chase focused on Mining M&A and then evolved into a more generalist M&A role and then a TMT focused role. In 2017, he co-founded Portman Partners, a merchant banking platform that is the co-owner of AlphaStream.

Jack Lunnon – Director

Jack has over 15 years of geology and mining experience and is responsible for assessing Geology and Mineral Resource Models at La Mancha. Prior to La Mancha, Jack was a Consultant Geologist for SLR Consulting (formerly RPA), where he performed countless due diligence reviews and audits on various projects across the world, and generated NI 43-101 compliant Mineral Resources and Technical Reports for several clients.

Jack has previously worked for Micromine, a major Geological Software company, developing in-depth knowledge of advanced resource modelling. Jack's resource skills are backed by solid geological exploration experience across Africa, the Middle East, and Australia, working for world-class mining companies such as Barrick Gold Corporation.

Jack is an expert in manipulating geological models and has recently obtained a Citation in Geostatistics from the University of Alberta. Jack holds a Master of Geology (MGeol) degree from the University of Southampton, UK, and is a Chartered Geologist (CGeol) with the Geological Society of London, as well as a registered professional geologist (EurGeol) with the European Federation of Geologists.

Vincent Benoit - Director

Vincent has over 30 years of corporate finance, business development and M&A experience in the mining, telecom, and energy sectors. Vincent identified the opportunity to buy La Mancha and joined the company as Head of Strategy & Business Development in 2012, before leading La Mancha's portfolio restructuring and contributing to the enhancement of its mines performance in Australia and Africa then identifying and executing the combinations with Evolution and Endeavour, which positioned La Mancha as a leading private investor in the gold mining sector. From 2016 to 2019, Vincent was CFO and EVP Corporate Development at Endeavour where he reshaped the strategy, improved the mine portfolio quality, and enhanced the balance sheet to fund the organic growth. Endeavour's market capitalization was quadrupled by the time he left at the end of 2019. In early 2020, he re-joined La Mancha to oversee investments and fund raising.

Previously, Vincent was at Orange (2006-2012) where he served as EVP M&A. He led the development of the group's footprint in Africa and Europe and formed strategic partnerships with key European telecoms players. Prior to this, Vincent held various finance positions including with Orano (ex-Areva), Bull Information Systems and PwC. Vincent holds a MSc from Kedge Business School and is a Chartered Accountant.

David Baker - Chief Financial Officer

David has 14 years' experience in the mining and mine finance industries. He started his career at BMO Capital Markets before joining Kulczyk Investments, a Polish family investment company. Whilst at Kulczyk Investments, David was part of the establishment of QKR Corporation, a private mining investment company, and was seconded to the business development team which acquired the Navachab gold mine from Anglogold Ashanti. Prior to joining Elemental, David was Vice President at Tamesis Partners LLP, specialising in corporate advisory, research, and equity capital markets. David was appointed as CFO on January 19, 2023. Prior to that, he served as Executive Vice President of Business Development of the Company since April 2020.

Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies

Except as disclosed below, no existing or proposed director of the Company:

- is, as at the date hereof, or has been, within the 10 years before the date hereof, a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any other issuer (including the Company) that:
 - (i) was subject to a cease trade order, or similar order, or an order that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation that was in effect for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, that was issued while the proposed director was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer; or
 - (ii) was subject to a cease trade order, or similar order, or an order that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation that was in effect for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, that was issued after the proposed director ceased to be a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer and which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer; or
- (b) is, as at the date hereof, or has been, within the 10 years before the date hereof, a director or executive officer of any issuer (including the Company), that while that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; or
- (c) has, within the 10 years before the date hereof, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or become subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets.

From March 2022 to August 2024, Vincent Benoit was a director of Horizonte Minerals Plc ("**Horizonte**"), a company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. On May 16, 2024, Horizonte entered into administration pursuant to a power of the directors of Horizonte to appoint administrators under the United Kingdom's Insolvency Act 1986 and, in connection therewith, trading of Horizonte's ordinary shares was suspended on AIM with effect on May 16, 2024 and the TSX with effect on May 15, 2024.

Penalties or Sanctions

None of those persons who are proposed directors of the Company (or any personal holding companies) have been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement with a securities regulatory authority or been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable shareholder in deciding whether to vote for a proposed director.

Personal Bankruptcies

No proposed director of the Company, or a personal holding company of any such person has, within the past ten years, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of such person.

It is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy, if not expressly directed to the contrary in such Instrument of Proxy, to vote such Instruments of Proxy \underline{FOR} the election of each of the Elemental Nominees specified above as directors of the Company.

3. Appointment of Auditor

Shareholders will be asked to approve and ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"), as auditors of the Company until the next annual meeting of Shareholders of the Company at a renumeration to be fixed by the directors of the Company. PwC was appointed as the auditor of the Company on July 17, 2020. Unless otherwise directed, Instruments of Proxy given pursuant to this solicitation by the management of the Company will be voted <u>FOR</u> the appointment of PwC as the auditor of the Company to hold office until the next annual general meeting of Shareholders and the authorization of the directors to fix the remuneration of the auditor. For more information, see "Audit Committee Disclosure – External Auditor Service Fees" in the Circular.

4. Approval of Amended Omnibus Plan

Relevant disinterested Shareholders, as described under the heading "Votes Necessary to Pass Resolutions" of this Circular, will be asked to consider and, if deemed advisable, pass an ordinary resolution approving and ratifying the Company's Omnibus Plan including (i) the setting-aside, allotting and reserving 10% of the Company's outstanding Common Shares from time to time for issuance pursuant to the exercise of stock options granted under the Omnibus Plan and (ii) the Amendment to the Omnibus Plan to increase the number of Common Shares that may be issued under the "fixed 10% plan" with respect to awards of restricted share units and performance share units by 1,500,000 Common Shares, and the setting-aside, allotting and reserving an aggregate of an additional 1,500,000 Common Shares from time to time for issuance pursuant to such awards, the full text of which resolution is set out in Schedule "B" to the Circular (the "Omnibus Plan Resolution"). The Omnibus Plan Resolution must be approved by not less than a majority of the votes cast in respect thereof by Shareholders other than Insiders of the Company eligible to receive awards under the Omnibus Plan. Unless otherwise directed, Instruments of Proxy given pursuant to this solicitation by the management of the Company will be voted FOR approving the Omnibus Plan Resolution.

On October 28, 2024, the Board approved, subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Meeting, the Amendment to increase the number of Share Units that may be granted under the Omnibus Plan, by 1,500,000 Common Shares. The Board is of the view that the Amendment will maximize the number of Common Shares available for issuance and provide the Company with increased flexibility to continue to retain and motivate officers, directors, employees and consultants, while providing room for future growth.

The Omnibus Plan, with respect to the Options, is a "rolling plan" and, as a result, any and all increases in the number of issued and outstanding Common Shares will result in an increase to the number of Options available for issuance under the Omnibus Plan. For greater certainty, the aggregate number of Common Shares available for issuance pursuant to the settlement of Options shall not exceed 10% of the Company's outstanding share capital.

In accordance with the Amendment and for so long as the Company is listed on the TSXV or on another exchange that requires the Company to fix the number of Common Shares to be issued in settlement of Share Units, the maximum number of Common Shares available for issuance pursuant to the settlement of Share Units shall be 6,895,109 Common Shares. The full text of the Omnibus Plan is attached to this Circular as Schedule "C".

5. Approval of Advance Notice Policy

The Company's Advance Notice Policy (the "Advance Notice Policy") was adopted by the Board on October 28, 2024, and is effective as of such date. Shareholders will be asked to consider and, if deemed advisable, pass an ordinary resolution approving the Company's Advance Notice Policy, the full text of which resolution is set out in Schedule "D" to the Circular (the "Advance Notice Policy Resolution"). The Advance Notice Policy Resolution must be approved by not less than a majority of the votes cast in respect thereof by Shareholders. Unless the Advance Notice Policy is approved by the shareholders of the Company, the Advance Notice Policy will not apply with respect to any meeting of shareholders called for the purpose of electing any director or directors following the Meeting, as such Meeting may be adjourned or postponed from time to time. The full text of the Advance Notice Policy is set out in Schedule "E" to the Circular.

The purpose of the Advance Notice Policy is to, among other things, (i) facilitate an orderly and efficient annual general or, where the need arises, special meeting, process, (ii) ensure that all shareholders receive adequate notice of the director nominations and sufficient information regarding all director nominees, and (iii) allow shareholders to register an informed vote after having been afforded reasonable time for appropriate deliberation.

The Advance Notice Policy, among other things, includes a provision that requires advance notice to the Company in certain circumstances where nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors are made by shareholders of the Company. The Advance Notice Policy fixes a deadline by which director nominations must be submitted to the Company prior to any annual or special meeting of shareholders and sets out the information that must be included in the notice to the Company for the notice to be in proper written form.

In the case of an annual general meeting of shareholders, notice to the Company under the Advance Notice Policy must be made not less than 30 days nor more than 65 days prior to the date of the annual general meeting; provided, however, that in the event that the annual general meeting is to be held on a date that is less than 50 days after the date on which the first public announcement by press release of the date of the annual meeting is made, notice under the Advance Notice Policy must be made not later than the close of business on the 10th day following such public announcement.

In the case of a special meeting of shareholders, which is not also an annual general meeting, called for the purpose of electing directors (whether or not called for other purposes), notice to the Company under the Advance Notice Policy must be made not later than the close of business on the 15th day following the day on which the first public announcement by press release of the date of the special meeting is made.

Unless otherwise directed, Instruments of Proxy given pursuant to this solicitation by the management of the Company will be voted <u>FOR</u> approving the Advance Notice Policy Resolution.

VOTES NECESSARY TO PASS RESOLUTIONS

A plurality of the votes cast at the Meeting is required to pass the resolutions described herein, except with respect to the approval of (i) the Omnibus Plan, which is subject to the approval by a majority of the votes cast at the Meeting by Shareholders present in-person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Meeting, excluding votes cast by Insiders eligible to receive Awards pursuant to the Omnibus Plan, and (ii) the Advance Notice Policy, which is subject to the approval by a majority of the votes cast at the Meeting by Shareholders present in-person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Meeting. If there are properly nominated nominees for election as directors in addition to the Elemental Nominees, the nominees receiving the greatest number of votes will be elected until the number of directors to be elected at the Meeting have been elected. If the number of nominees for election as directors is equal to the number of directors to be elected at the Meeting, all such nominees will be declared elected by acclamation.

OTHER MATTERS

Management of the Company knows of no amendment, variation or other matter to come before the Meeting other than the matters referred to in the Notice of Meeting accompanying this Circular. However, if any other matter properly comes before the Meeting, the Instrument of Proxy and VIF furnished by the Company will be voted on such matters in accordance with the best judgment of the persons voting the Instrument of Proxy.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

No director, executive officer or proposed director of the Company or any associate of the foregoing is, or at any time since the beginning of the Company's most recently completed financial year has been, indebted to the Company, nor were any of these individuals indebted to any other entity which indebtedness was the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Company, including under any securities purchase or other program.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Other than as disclosed herein, no person who has been a director or executive officer of the Company at any time since the beginning of the last financial year, nor any proposed nominee for election as a director of the Company, nor any associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing, has any material interest, directly or indirectly, by way of beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon.

INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the IRA, La Mancha provided notice of the exercise of its anti-dilution right in totality in order to subscribe for 16,141,940 Common Shares with a subscription price of C\$1.10 per Common Share for aggregate

proceeds of C\$17,756,134 (the "**Private Placement**"). On October 29, 2024, the Company announced the completion of the Private Placement. Following the completion of the Private Placement, La Mancha holds 31.90% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares.

There are potential conflicts of interest to which the directors and officers of the Company may be subject in connection with the operations of the Company. Some of the directors and officers of the Company are engaged and will continue to be engaged in other business opportunities on their own behalf and on behalf of other companies, and situations may arise where such directors and officers will be in competition with the Company. Individuals concerned shall be governed in any conflicts or potential conflicts by applicable law and internal policies of the Company.

For the purposes of the above, "informed person" means: (a) a director or executive officer of the Company; (b) a director or executive officer of a company that is itself an informed person or subsidiary of the Company; (c) any person or company who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, voting securities of the Company or who exercises control or direction over voting securities of the Company or a combination of both carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding voting securities of the Company other than voting securities held by the person or company as underwriter in the course of a distribution; and (d) the Company after having purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired any of its securities, for so long as it holds any of its securities.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Company may be found under the Company's profile on SEDAR+ at www.sedarplus.ca. Financial information for the Company's last financial year is provided in its comparative financial statements and management's discussion and analysis, and is also available on the SEDAR+ website.

To request copies of the Company's financial statements and management's discussion and analysis and any document to be approved at the Meeting, Shareholders may contact the Company as follows:

David Baker, Chief Financial Officer

1020 - 800 West Pender Vancouver, BC V6C 2V6

e-mail: d.baker@elementalaltus.com Telephone: +44 (0) 7825 266 736

APPROVAL

The contents of this Circular and the sending thereof to the Shareholders of the Company have been approved by the Board. A copy of this Circular has been sent to each director of the Company, each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the Meeting and the auditors of the Company.

DATED this 30th day of October, 2024

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ELEMENTAL ALTUS ROYALTIES CORP.

(signed) "Frederick Bell"
Chief Executive Officer and Director

SCHEDULE "A" GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Capitalized terms used but not herein defined shall bear the meanings given to them in the relevant sections of the Circular.

"AIM" means the market of that name operated by the London Stock Exchange;

"ASX" means Australian Securities Exchange Ltd.;

"Business Day" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in England

or Vancouver, Canada;

"CEO" means Chief Executive Officer;

"CFO" means Chief Financial Officer;

"JSE" means Johannesburg Stock Exchange;

"La Mancha Holding" means La Mancha Holding S.à r.l.;

"La Mancha Investments" means La Mancha Investments S.à r.l.;

"London Stock Exchange" means London Stock Exchange plc;

means the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval +,

"SEDAR+" an electronic filing system for Canadian listed companies;

"SEDI" means the System for Electronic Disclosure by Insiders;

"TSX" means Toronto Stock Exchange;

"TSXV" means TSX Venture Exchange;

"UK" means the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland; and

"US" or "United States" means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any

state of the United States of America and the District of Columbia.

SCHEDULE "B" OMNIBUS PLAN RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

- 1. the amended and restated equity incentive compensation plan (the "Omnibus Plan") of the Company, substantially in the form attached as Schedule "C" to the Management Information Circular of the Company dated October 30, 2024 be and is hereby approved and ratified;
- 2. the setting-aside, allotting and reserving 10% of the Company's outstanding common shares (the "**Common Shares**") from time to time for issuance pursuant to the exercise of stock options granted under the Omnibus Plan is hereby approved and ratified;
- 3. an amendment to the Omnibus Plan to increase the number of Common Shares that may be issued under the "fixed 10% plan" with respect to awards of restricted share units and performance share units by 1,500,000 Common Shares, and the setting-aside, allotting and reserving an aggregate of an additional 1,500,000 Common Shares from time to time for issuance pursuant to such awards is hereby approved and ratified; and
- 4. any one director or officer of the Company is hereby authorized and directed for and on behalf of the Company to execute or cause to be executed, under the corporate seal of the Company or otherwise, and to deliver or cause to be delivered, all such other documents and instruments and to perform or cause to be performed all such other acts and things as in such person's opinion may be necessary or desirable to give full effect to the foregoing resolution and the matters authorized thereby, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of such document, agreement or instrument or the doing of any such act or thing.

SCHEDULE "C" OMNIBUS PLAN

ELEMENTAL ALTUS ROYALTIES CORP.

2020 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

ARTICLE 1 ESTABLISHMENT, PURPOSE AND DURATION

1.1 <u>Establishment of the Plan</u>. The following is the omnibus equity incentive compensation plan of Elemental Altus Royalties Corp. (the "**Company**") pursuant to which share based compensation Awards (as defined below) may be granted to eligible Participants (as defined below). The name of the plan is the Elemental 2020 Incentive Compensation Plan (the "**Plan**").

The Plan permits the grant of Options, Restricted Share Units and Performance Share Units (as such terms are defined below). The Plan was approved by the Board (as defined below) on July 28, 2020, and an amendment to the Plan was approved by the Board on August 8, 2023 and October 28, 2024, and the Plan will be effective upon ratification of Company shareholders (the "Effective Date") until the date it is terminated by the Board in accordance with the Plan.

- 1.2 <u>Purposes of the Plan</u>. The purposes of the Plan are to: (i) provide the Company with a mechanism to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company and its Affiliates; (ii) align the interests of Participants with that of other shareholders of the Company generally; and (iii) enable and encourage Participants to participate in the long-term growth of the Company through the acquisition of Shares (as defined below) as long-term investments.
- 1.3 <u>Successor Plan</u>. This Plan shall, in respect of Options (as defined below), serve as the successor to the Company's share option plan most recently reapproved by the holders of the Company's Shares on October 18, 2019 (the "**Predecessor Plan**"). No further awards shall be made under the Predecessor Plan from and after the Effective Date of the Plan.

ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS

- 2.1 Whenever used in the Plan, the following terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, and when such meaning is intended, such term shall be capitalized.
 - (a) "Affiliate" means any corporation, partnership or other entity (i) in which the Company, directly or indirectly, has majority ownership interest or (ii) which the Company controls. For the purposes of this definition, the Company is deemed to "control" such corporation, partnership or other entity if the Company possesses, directly or indirectly, the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such corporation, partnership or other entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise, and includes a corporation which is considered to be a subsidiary for purposes of consolidation under International Financial Reporting Standards.

- (b) "Award" means, individually or collectively, a grant under the Plan of Options, Restricted Share Units or Performance Share Units, in each case subject to the terms of the Plan.
- (c) "Award Agreement" means either (i) a written agreement entered into by the Company or an Affiliate of the Company and a Participant setting forth the terms and provisions applicable to Awards granted under the Plan; or (ii) a written statement issued by the Company or an Affiliate of the Company to a Participant describing the terms and provisions of such Award. All Award Agreements shall be deemed to incorporate the provisions of the Plan, subject to such modifications or additions as the Committee may, in its sole discretion, determine appropriate. An Award Agreement need not be identical to other Award Agreements either in form or substance.
- (d) "Blackout Period" means a period of time during which the Participant cannot sell Shares, due to applicable law or policies of the Company in respect of insider trading.
- (e) "Board" or "Board of Directors" means the Board of Directors of the Company as may be constituted from time to time.
- (f) "Cause" means (i) if the Participant has a written agreement pursuant to which he or she offers his or her services to the Company and the term "cause" is defined in such agreement, "cause" as defined in such agreement; or otherwise (ii) (a) the inability of the Participant to perform his or her duties due to a legal impediment such as an injunction, restraining order or other type of judicial judgment, decree or order entered against the Participant; (b) the failure of the Participant to follow the Company's reasonable instructions with respect to the performance of his or her duties; (c) any material breach by the Participant of his or her obligations under any code of ethics, any other code of business conduct or any lawful policies or procedures of the Company; (d) excessive absenteeism, flagrant neglect of duties, serious misconduct, or conviction of crime or fraud; and (e) any other act or omission of the Participant which would in law permit an employer to, without notice or payment in lieu of notice, terminate the employment of an employee.
- (g) "Change of Control" means the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:
 - a consolidation, merger, amalgamation, arrangement or other reorganization or acquisition involving the Company as a result of which the holders of Shares prior to the completion of the transaction hold or beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than 50% of the outstanding Voting Securities of the successor corporation after completion of the transaction;
 - (ii) the sale, lease, exchange or other disposition, in a single transaction or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries to any other person or entity, other than a disposition to a wholly-owned subsidiary in the course of a reorganization of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries;

- (iii) a resolution is adopted to wind-up, dissolve or liquidate the Company;
- (iv) an acquisition by any person, entity or group of persons or entities acting jointly or in concert of beneficial ownership of more than 50% of the Voting Securities, or securities convertible into, exercisable for or carrying the right to purchase more than 50% of the Voting Securities on a post-conversion basis, assuming only the conversion or exercise of securities beneficially owned by the acquiror; or
- (v) the Board adopts a resolution to the effect that a Change of Control as defined herein has occurred or is imminent.
- (h) "Committee" means the Board of Directors or if so delegated in whole or in part by the Board, any duly authorized committee of the Board appointed by the Board to administer the Plan.
- (i) "Company" means Elemental Altus Royalties Corp., a company existing under the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), and any successor thereof.
- (j) "Consultant" has the meaning set out in Policy 4.4 of the Exchange or such replacement definition for so long as the Shares are listed on the Exchange, and if the Shares are not so listed, shall have the meaning, if any, that applies to a listing of the Shares on such other exchange as the Shares are then listed on.
- (k) "Corporate Reorganization" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term under section herein.
- (I) "Director" means any individual who is a member of the Board of Directors of the Company.
- (m) "Disability" means the disability of the Participant which would entitle the Participant to receive disability benefits pursuant to the long-term disability plan of the Company (if one exists) then covering the Participant, provided that the Board may, in its sole discretion, determine that, notwithstanding the provisions of any such long-term disability plan, the Participant is permanently disabled for the purposes of the Plan.
- (n) "Dividend Equivalent" means a right with respect to an Award to receive cash, Shares or other property equal in value and form to dividends declared by the Board and paid with respect to outstanding Shares. Dividend Equivalents shall not apply to an Award unless specifically provided for in the Award Agreement, and if specifically provided for in the Award Agreement shall be subject to such terms and conditions set forth in the Award Agreement as the Committee shall determine.
- (o) "Employee" means any employee or officer of the Company or an Affiliate of the Company. Directors who are not otherwise employed by the Company or an Affiliate of the Company shall not be considered Employees under the Plan.

- (p) "Exchange" means the TSX Venture Exchange, or if the Shares are not listed on the TSX Venture Exchange, such other principal market on which the Shares of the Company are then traded as designated by the Committee from time to time.
- (q) "Exchange Hold Period" means a four month resale restriction imposed by the Exchange, as set forth in the Exchange Policies.
- (r) "Exchange Policies" mean the policies of the Exchange, including those set forth in the Corporate Finance Manual of the Exchange.
- (s) "FMV" means, unless otherwise required by any applicable provision of any regulations thereunder or by any applicable accounting standard for the Company's desired accounting for Awards or by the rules of the Exchange, a price that is determined by the Committee, provided that such price cannot be less than the last closing price of the Shares on the Exchange less any discount permitted by the rules or policies of the Exchange.
- (t) "Insider" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Exchange Policies.
- (u) "Investor Relations Activities" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Exchange Policies.
- (v) "Non-Employee Director" means a Director who is not an Employee.
- (w) "Notice Period" means any period of contractual notice or reasonable notice that the Company or an Affiliate of the Company may be required at law, by contract or otherwise agrees to provide to a Participant upon termination of employment, whether or not the Company or Affiliate elects to pay severance in lieu of providing notice to the Participant, provided that where a Participant's employment contract provides for an increased severance or termination payment in the event of termination following a Change of Control, the Notice Period for the purposes of the Plan shall be the Notice Period under such contract applicable to a termination which does not follow a Change of Control.
- (x) "Option" means the conditional right to purchase Shares at a stated Option Price for a specified period of time subject to the terms of the Plan.
- (y) "Option Price" means the price at which a Share may be purchased by a Participant pursuant to an Option, as determined by the Committee.
- (z) "Participant" means an Employee, Non-Employee Director or Consultant who has been selected to receive an Award, or who has an outstanding Award granted under the Plan or the Predecessor Plan.
- (aa) "Performance Period" means the period of time during which the assigned performance criteria must be met in order to determine the degree of payout and/or vesting with respect to an Award.
- (bb) "Performance Share Unit" means an Award granted under Article 9 herein and subject to the terms of the Plan, denominated in units, the value of which at the

- time it is payable is determined as a function of the extent to which corresponding performance criteria have been achieved.
- (cc) "Period of Restriction" means the period when an Award of Restricted Share Units is subject to forfeiture based on the passage of time, the achievement of performance criteria, and/or upon the occurrence of other events as determined by the Committee, in its discretion.
- (dd) "Person" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Exchange Policies.
- (ee) "Reserve" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term under section 4.1 herein.
- (ff) "Restricted Share Unit" means an Award denominated in units subject to a Period of Restriction, with a right to receive Shares upon settlement of the Award, granted under Article 7 herein and subject to the terms of the Plan.
- (gg) "Retirement" or "Retire" means a Participant's permanent withdrawal from employment or office with the Company or an Affiliate of the Company on terms and conditions accepted and determined by the Board.
- (hh) "Shares" means common shares of the Company.
- (ii) "Share Units" means Performance Share Units and Restricted Share Units, including any Dividend Equivalent granted with respect to a Performance Share Unit and/or Restricted Share Unit.
- (jj) "Termination Date" means the date on which a Participant ceases to be eligible to participate under the Plan as a result of a termination of employment, officer position, board service or consulting arrangement with the Company or any Affiliate of the Company for any reason, including death, Retirement, resignation or termination with or without Cause. For the purposes of the Plan, a Participant's employment, officer position, board service or consulting arrangement with the Company or an Affiliate of the Company shall be considered to have terminated effective on the last day of the Participant's actual and active employment, officer position or board or consulting service with the Company or the Affiliate whether such day is selected by agreement with the individual, unilaterally by the Company or the Affiliate and whether with or without advance notice to the Participant. For the avoidance of doubt, no period of notice or pay in lieu of notice that is given or that ought to have been given under applicable law in respect of such termination of employment that follows or is in respect of a period after the Participant's last day of actual and active employment shall be considered as extending the Participant's period of employment for the purposes of determining his or her entitlement under the Plan.
- (kk) "Voting Securities" shall mean any securities of the Company ordinarily carrying the right to vote at elections of directors and any securities immediately convertible into or exchangeable for such securities.

ARTICLE 3 ADMINISTRATION

- 3.1 General. The Committee shall be responsible for administering the Plan. The Committee may employ legal counsel, consultants, accountants, agents and other individuals, any of whom may be an Employee, and the Committee, the Company, and its officers and Directors shall be entitled to rely upon the advice, opinions or valuations of any such persons. All actions taken and all interpretations and determinations made by the Committee shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the Participants, the Company, and all other interested parties. No member of the Committee will be liable for any action or determination taken or made in good faith with respect to the Plan or Awards granted hereunder. Each member of the Committee shall be entitled to indemnification by the Company with respect to any such determination or action in the manner provided for by the Company and its subsidiaries.
- 3.2 Authority of the Committee. The Committee shall have full and exclusive discretionary power to determine the terms and provisions of Award Agreements, to interpret the terms and the intent of the Plan and any Award Agreement or other agreement ancillary to or in connection with the Plan, to determine eligibility for Awards, and to adopt such rules, regulations and guidelines for administering the Plan as the Committee may deem necessary or proper. Such authority shall include, but not be limited to, selecting Award recipients, establishing all Award terms and conditions, including grant, exercise price, issue price and vesting terms, determining any performance goals applicable to Awards and whether such performance goals have been achieved, and, subject to Article 13, adopting modifications and amendments to the Plan or any Award Agreement, including, without limitation, any that are necessary or appropriate to comply with the laws or compensation practices of the jurisdictions in which the Company and its Affiliates operate. All costs incurred in connection with this Plan shall be for the account of the Company. This Plan shall be administered in accordance with the Exchange Policies by the Committee so long as the Shares are listed on the Exchange.
- 3.3 <u>Delegation</u>. The Committee may delegate to one or more of its members any of the Committee's administrative duties or powers as it may deem advisable; provided, however, that any such delegation must be permitted under applicable corporate law.
- 3.4 Record Keeping. The Company shall maintain a register in which shall be recorded:
 - (a) the name and address of each Participant;
 - (b) the number of Shares subject to Awards granted to each Participant; and
 - (c) the aggregate number of Shares subject to Awards.

ARTICLE 4 SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN AND MAXIMUM AWARDS

4.1 <u>Maximum Number of Shares Available for Awards</u>. The maximum number of Shares available for issuance pursuant to the exercise or redemption, as applicable of Awards granted under the Plan, will be 10% of the total outstanding Shares from time to time less the number of Shares issuable pursuant to any Share Units issued hereunder and other security-based compensation arrangements of the Company (the "**Reserve**"). For greater

certainty, the aggregate number of Shares available for issuance pursuant to settlement of Options shall not exceed 10% of the Company's outstanding share capital. Shares in respect of which Options have not been exercised and are no longer subject to being purchased pursuant to the terms of any Options shall be available for further Options under the Plan. The Plan with respect to the Options is a "rolling plan" and as a result, any and all increases in the number of issued and outstanding Shares will result in an increase to the Reserve.

- 4.2 Maximum Number of Shares Available for the Settlement of Share Units. For so long as the Company is listed on the TSX Venture Exchange or on another exchange that requires the Company to fix the number of Shares to be issued in settlement of Share Units, the maximum number of Shares available for issuance pursuant to the settlement of Share Units shall be 6,895,1095,395,109 Shares. For greater certainty, the aggregate number of Shares available for issuance pursuant to settlement of Share Units shall not exceed the lesser of (i) 10% of the Company's outstanding Share capital less the number of Options outstanding; and (ii) 6,895,1095,395,109 less the number of Share Units redeemed for Shares.
- 4.3 Award Grants to Individuals. The aggregate number of Shares for which Awards may be issued to any one Participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 5% of the outstanding Shares, calculated on the date an Award is granted to the Participant, unless the Company obtains disinterested shareholder approval as required by the policies of the Exchange. The aggregate number of Shares for which Awards may be issued to any one Consultant within any 12-month period shall not exceed 2% of the outstanding Shares, calculated on the date an Award is granted to the Consultant.
- 4.4 Award Grants to Persons Providing Investor Relations Activities. The aggregate number of Shares for which Options may be issued to any Persons retained to provide Investor Relations Activities within any 12-month period shall not exceed 2% of the outstanding Shares, calculated on the date an Option is granted to such Persons. Awards other than Options may not be granted to Persons retained to provide Investor Relations Activities, except if such person is also an employee of the Company.
- 4.5 <u>Award Grants to Insiders</u>. Unless disinterested shareholder approval as required by the policies of the Exchange is obtained: (i) the maximum number of Shares for which Awards may be issued to Insiders (as a group) at any point in time shall not exceed 10% of the outstanding Shares; and the aggregate number of Awards granted to Insiders (as a group), within any 12-month period, shall not exceed 10% of the outstanding Shares, calculated at the date an Award is granted to any Insider.
- Adjustments in Authorized Shares. In the event of any corporate event or transaction (collectively, a "Corporate Reorganization") (including, but not limited to, a change in the Shares of the Company or the capitalization of the Company) such as a merger, arrangement, amalgamation, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, separation, stock dividend, extraordinary dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, split up, spin-off or other distribution of stock or property of the Company, combination of securities, exchange of securities, dividend in kind, or other like change in capital structure or distribution (other than normal cash dividends) to shareholders of the Company, or any similar corporate event or transaction, the Committee shall make or provide for such adjustments or substitutions, as applicable, in the number and kind of Shares that may be issued under the Plan, the number and kind of Shares subject to outstanding Awards, the Option Price,

grant price or exercise price applicable to outstanding Awards, the limit on issuing Awards other than Options granted with an Option Price equal to at least the FMV of a Share on the date of grant and any other value determinations applicable to outstanding Awards or to the Plan, as are equitably necessary to prevent dilution or enlargement of Participants' rights under the Plan that otherwise would result from such corporate event or transaction. In connection with a Corporate Reorganization, the Committee shall have the discretion to permit a holder of Options to purchase (at the times, for the consideration, and subject to the terms and conditions set out in the Plan and the applicable Award Agreement) and the holder will then accept on the exercise of such Option, in lieu of the Shares that such holder would otherwise have been entitled to purchase, the kind and amount of shares or other securities or property that such holder would have been entitled to receive as a result of the Corporate Reorganization if, on the effective date thereof, that holder had owned all Shares that were subject to the Option. Such adjustments shall be made automatically, without the necessity of Committee action, on the customary arithmetical basis in the case of any stock split, including a stock split effected by means of a stock dividend, and in the case of any other dividend paid in Shares.

The Committee shall also make appropriate adjustments in the terms of any Awards under the Plan as are equitably necessary to reflect such Corporate Reorganization and may modify any other terms of outstanding Awards, including modifications of performance criteria and changes in the length of Performance Periods. The determination of the Committee as to the foregoing adjustments, if any, shall be conclusive and binding on Participants under the Plan, provided that any such adjustments must comply with all regulatory requirements.

Subject to the provisions of Article 11, acceptance of the Exchange, shareholder approval (except as allowed for under the Exchange Policies) and any applicable law or regulatory requirement, without affecting the number of Shares reserved or available hereunder, the Committee may authorize the issuance, assumption, substitution or conversion of Awards under the Plan in connection with any Corporate Reorganization, upon such terms and conditions as it may deem appropriate. Additionally, the Committee may amend the Plan, or adopt supplements to the Plan, in such manner as it deems appropriate to provide for such issuance, assumption, substitution or conversion as provided in the previous sentence.

ARTICLE 5 ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

- 5.1 <u>Eligibility</u>. Awards under the Plan shall be granted only to bona fide Employees, Non-Employee Directors and Consultants, as per the policies of the Exchange.
- 5.2 <u>Actual Participation</u>. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee may, from time to time, in its sole discretion select from among eligible Employees, Non-Employee Directors and Consultants, those to whom Awards shall be granted under the Plan, and shall determine in its discretion the nature, terms, conditions and amount of each Award.

ARTICLE 6 STOCK OPTIONS

- 6.1 <u>Grant of Options</u>. Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, Options may be granted to Participants in such number, and upon such terms, and at any time and from time to time as shall be determined by the Committee in its discretion.
- 6.2 <u>Award Agreement</u>. Each Option grant shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify the Option Price, the duration of the Option, the number of Shares to which the Option pertains, the conditions, if any, upon which an Option shall become vested and exercisable, and any such other provisions as the Committee shall determine. The Award Agreement for the grant of Options shall be in such form or forms as the Committee may from time to time approve.
- 6.3 Option Price. The Option Price for each grant of an Option under the Plan shall be determined by the Committee and shall be specified in the Award Agreement. The Option Price for an Option shall be not less than the FMV of the Shares on the date of grant.
- 6.4 <u>Vesting of Options</u>. Subject to any provisions of the Plan or the applicable Award Agreement relating to acceleration of vesting of Options, Options shall vest subject to Exchange Policies, and the Committee may, in its sole discretion, determine the time during which an Option shall vest and the method of vesting, or that no vesting restriction shall exist. If the Committee does not determine a vesting schedule at the time of grant of any particular Option, such Option shall be exercisable in whole at any time, or in part from time to time, during the term of the Option, subject to the applicable requirements of the Exchange. Options issued to any Persons retained to provide Investor Relations Activities must vest in stages over a period of not less than 12 months, with no more than 1/4 of the Options vesting in any three month period.
- 6.5 <u>Duration of Options</u>. Each Option granted to a Participant shall expire at such time as the Committee shall determine at the time of grant; provided, however, that, subject to section 6.6, no Option shall be exercisable later than the tenth (10) anniversary date of its grant.
- 6.6 <u>Blackout Periods</u>. If the date on which an Option is scheduled to expire occurs within the Blackout Period applicable to such Participant, then the expiry date for such Option shall be extended to the last day of such 10 business day period.
- 6.7 <u>Exercise of Options</u>. Options granted under this Article 6 shall be exercisable at such times and on the occurrence of such events, and be subject to such restrictions and conditions, as the Committee shall in each instance approve, which need not be the same for each grant or for each Participant.
- 6.8 Payment. Options granted under this Article 6 shall be exercised by the delivery of a notice of exercise to the Company or an agent designated by the Company in a form specified or accepted by the Committee, or by complying with any alternative procedures which may be authorized by the Committee, setting forth the number of Shares with respect to which the Option is to be exercised, accompanied by full payment of the Option Price.

The Option Price upon exercise of any Option shall be payable to the Company in full in cash, certified cheque or wire transfer.

As soon as practicable after receipt of a notification of exercise and full payment of the Option Price, the Shares in respect of which the Option has been exercised shall be issued as fully-paid and non- assessable common shares of the Company. As of the business day the Company receives such notice and such payment, the Participant (or the person claiming through a Participant, as the case may be) shall be entitled to be entered on the share register of the Company as the holder of the number of Shares in respect of which the Option was exercised and to receive as promptly as possible thereafter, but in any event, on or before the 15th day of the third month of the year following the year in which the Option was exercised, a certificate or evidence of book entry representing the said number of Shares. The Company shall cause to be delivered to or to the direction of the Participant Share certificates or evidence of book entry Shares in an appropriate amount based upon the number of Shares purchased under the Option(s).

Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Option unless the exercise of such Option and the issuance and delivery of such Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all relevant provisions of applicable Canadian and U.S. securities law, including, without limitation, the 1933 Act, the United States Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, applicable U.S. state laws, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the requirements of any stock exchange or consolidated stock price reporting system on which prices for the Shares are quoted at any given time. As a condition to the exercise of an Option, the Company may require the person exercising such Option to represent and warrant at the time of any such exercise that the Shares are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a representation is required by law.

- 6.9 <u>Death, Disability, Retirement and Termination or Resignation of Employment</u>. If the Award Agreement does not specify the effect of a termination, cessation or resignation of employment then the following default rules will apply, provided, however that such Option grants shall expire within a reasonable period, and in any event not exceeding 12 months, following the date the Participant ceases to be an eligible Participant:
 - (a) Death: If a Participant dies while an Employee, Director of, or Consultant to, the Company or an Affiliate of the Company:
 - (i) all unvested Options as at the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately vest; and
 - (ii) all vested Options (including those that vested pursuant to (i) above) shall continue to be subject to the Plan and exercisable for a period of 12 months after the Termination Date, provided that any Options that have not been exercised within 12 months after the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited on such date.
 - (b) Disability: If a Participant ceases to be eligible to be a Participant under the Plan as a result of their Disability then all Options remain and continue to vest (and are exercisable) in accordance with the terms of the Plan for a period of 12 months after the Termination Date, provided that any Options that have not been exercised (whether vested or not) within 12 months after the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited on such date.

- (c) Retirement: If a Participant Retires then the Board shall have the discretion, with respect to such Participant's Options, to determine: (i) whether to accelerate vesting of any or all of such Options, (ii) whether any of such Options shall be cancelled, with or without payment, and (iii) how long, if at all, such Options may remain outstanding following the Termination Date; provided, however, that in no event shall such Options be exercisable for more than 12 months after the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, there can be no acceleration of the vesting requirements applicable to Options granted to Persons retained to provide Investor Relations Activities without the prior written approval of the Exchange.
- (d) Termination for Cause: If a Participant ceases to be eligible to be a Participant under the Plan as a result of their termination for Cause, then all Options, whether vested or not, as at the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited.
- (e) Termination without Cause or Voluntary Resignation: If a Participant ceases to be eligible to be a Participant under the Plan for any reason, other than as set out in sections 6.9(a)- (d), then, unless otherwise determined by the Board in its sole discretion, as of the Termination Date:
 - (i) all unvested Options shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited, and
 - (ii) all vested Options shall continue to be subject to the Plan and exercisable for a period of 90 days after the Termination Date, provided that any Options that have not been exercised within 90 days after the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited on such date.
- 6.10 Non-transferability of Options. An Option granted under this Article 6 may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or hypothecated, subject to Section 9.1, the requirements of the Exchange or as otherwise allowed by the Exchange.

ARTICLE 7 RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS

- 7.1 <u>Grant of Restricted Share Units</u>. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan, the Committee, at any time and from time to time, may grant Restricted Share Units to Participants in such amounts and upon such terms as the Committee shall determine.
- Restricted Share Unit Agreement. Each Restricted Share Unit grant shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify the Period(s) of Restriction, the number of Restricted Share Units granted, and the settlement date for Restricted Share Units, and any such other provisions as the Committee shall determine, provided that unless otherwise determined by the Committee or as set out in any Award Agreement, no Restricted Share Unit shall vest earlier (i.e., Restricted Share Units shall not vest earlier than one year after the date of the grant of the Restricted Share Unit) or later than allowed by the polices of the Exchange. The Committee shall impose, in the Award Agreement at the time of grant, such other conditions and/or restrictions on any Restricted Share Units granted pursuant to the Plan as it may deem advisable, including, without limitation,

- restrictions based upon the time-based restrictions on vesting and, restrictions under applicable laws or under the requirements of the Exchange.
- 7.3 <u>Vesting of Restricted Share Units</u>. Subject to any provisions of the Plan or the applicable Award Agreement relating to acceleration of vesting of Restricted Share Units, Restricted Share Units shall vest at the discretion of the Committee, and subject to the policies of the Exchange, but in no case will any Restricted Share Unit vest or payment be made in respect of that Restricted Share Unit later than December 15 of the third calendar year following the year in which that Restricted Share Unit was granted.
- 7.4 <u>Blackout Periods</u>. If the date on which a Restricted Share Unit is scheduled to expire occurs within the Blackout Period applicable to such Participant, then the expiry date for such Award shall be extended to the last day of such 10 business day period.
- Non-transferability of Restricted Share Units. The Restricted Share Units granted herein may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned or otherwise alienated or hypothecated until the date of settlement through delivery or other payment, or upon earlier satisfaction of any other conditions, as specified by the Committee in its sole discretion and set forth in the Award Agreement at the time of grant or thereafter by the Committee. All rights with respect to the Restricted Share Units granted to a Participant under the Plan shall be available during such Participant's lifetime only to such Participant.
- Restricted Share Units granted hereunder may, if the Committee so determines, be credited with amounts equal to the cash dividends or Dividend Equivalents paid with respect to the underlying Shares while they are so held in a manner determined by the Committee in its sole discretion. Dividend Equivalents shall apply to an Award unless specifically provided for in the Award Agreement. The Committee may apply any restrictions to such dividend amounts or Dividend Equivalents that the Committee deems appropriate. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine the form of payment of such dividend amounts or Dividend Equivalents, including cash, Shares or Restricted Share Units. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may settle such entitlements with cash where it does not have sufficient Shares available to satisfy the obligation in Shares, or where the issuance of Shares would result in the Company breaching a limit on grants or issuances contained in the Plan.
- 7.7 <u>Death, Disability, Retirement and Termination or Resignation of Employment</u>. If the Award Agreement does not specify the effect of a termination or resignation of employment then the following default rules will apply:
 - (a) Death: If a Participant dies while an Employee, Director of, or Consultant to, the Company or an Affiliate:
 - (i) all unvested Restricted Share Units as at the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately vest; and
 - (ii) all vested Restricted Share Units (including those that vested pursuant to (i) above) shall be paid to the Participant's estate in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the Award Agreement.

- (b) Disability: If a Participant ceases to be eligible to be a Participant under the Plan as a result of their Disability, then all Restricted Share Units remain and continue to vest in accordance with the terms of the Plan for a period of 12 months after the Termination Date, provided that any Restricted Share Units that have not vested within 12 months after the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately expire and be forfeited on such date.
- (c) Retirement: If a Participant Retires then the Board shall have the discretion, with respect to such Participant's Restricted Share Units, to determine: (i) whether to accelerate vesting of any or all of such Restricted Share Units, (ii) whether any of such Restricted Share Units shall be cancelled, with or without payment, and (iii) how long, if at all, such Restricted Share Units may remain outstanding following the Termination Date; provided, however, that in no event shall such Restricted Share Units remain outstanding for more than 12 months after the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the above, for U.S. Participants, the treatment of Restricted Share Units upon retirement shall be provided for in the Award Agreement.
- (d) Termination for Cause: If a Participant ceases to be eligible to be a Participant under the Plan as a result of their termination for Cause, then all Restricted Share Units, whether vested or not, as at the Termination Date shall automatically and immediately be forfeited.
- (e) Termination without Cause or Voluntary Resignation: If a Participant ceases to be eligible to be a Participant under the Plan for any reason, other than as set out in sections 7.7(a)- (d), then, unless otherwise determined by the Board in its sole discretion, as of the Termination Date:
 - (i) all unvested Restricted Share Units shall automatically and immediately be forfeited, and
 - (ii) all vested Restricted Share Units shall be paid to the Participants in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the Award Agreement.
- 7.8 Payment in Settlement of Restricted Share Units. When and if Restricted Share Units become payable, the Participant issued such Restricted Share Units shall be entitled to receive payment from the Company in settlement of such Restricted Share Units: (i) in a number of Shares (issued from treasury) equal to the number of Restricted Share Units being settled, or (ii) in any other form, all as determined by the Committee at its sole discretion. The Committee's determination regarding the form of payout shall be set forth or reserved for later determination in the Award Agreement for the grant of the Restricted Share Units.

ARTICLE 8 PERFORMANCE SHARE UNITS

8.1 <u>Grant of Performance Share Units</u>. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the policies of the Exchange, the Committee, at any time and from time to time, may grant Performance Share Units to Participants in such amounts and upon such terms as the Committee shall determine.

- 8.2 <u>Value of Performance Share Units</u>. Each Performance Share Unit shall have an initial value equal to the FMV of a Share on the date of grant. The Committee shall set performance criteria for a Performance Period in its discretion, which, depending on the extent to which they are met, will determine, in the manner determined by the Committee and set forth in the Award Agreement, the value and/or number of each Performance Share Unit that will be paid to the Participant.
- 8.3 Earning of Performance Share Units. Subject to the terms of the Plan and the applicable Award Agreement, after the applicable Performance Period has ended, the holder of Performance Share Units shall be entitled to receive payout on the value and number of Performance Share Units, determined as a function of the extent to which the corresponding performance criteria have been achieved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall have the ability to require the Participant to hold any Shares received pursuant to such Award for a specified period of time.
- 8.4 Form and Timing of Payment of Performance Share Units. Payment of earned Performance Share Units shall be as determined by the Committee and as set forth in the Award Agreement. Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may pay earned Performance Share Units in the form of a number of Shares issued from treasury equal to the number of earned Performance Share Units at the end of the applicable Performance Period. Any Shares may be granted subject to any restrictions deemed appropriate by the Committee. The determination of the Committee with respect to the form of payout of such Awards shall be set forth in the Award Agreement for the grant of the Award or reserved for later determination. Other than as determined by the Committee in writing, in no event will delivery of such Shares or other form of payment or consideration under a Performance Share Unit be made later than the earlier of: (i) 3 months after the close of the year in which such conditions or restrictions were satisfied or lapsed and (ii) December 31 of the third year following the year of the grant date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may not grant Awards that are not Options to any persons conducting Investor Relations Activities and any Performance Share Units cannot vest earlier than one year after the date of grant.
- 8.5 <u>Dividends and Other Distributions.</u> Participants holding Performance Share Units granted hereunder may, if the Committee so determines, be credited with dividends paid with respect to the underlying Shares or Dividend Equivalents while they are so held in a manner determined by the Committee in its sole discretion. Dividend Equivalents shall not apply to an Award unless specifically provided for in the Award Agreement. The Committee may apply any restrictions to the dividends or Dividend Equivalents that the Committee deems appropriate. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine the form of payment of dividends or Dividend Equivalents, including cash, Shares or Performance Share Units. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may settle such entitlements with cash where it does not have sufficient Shares available to satisfy the obligation in Shares, or where the issuance of Shares would result in the Company breaching a limit on grants or issuances contained in the Plan.
- 8.6 Termination of Employment, Consultancy or Directorship. Each Award Agreement shall set forth the extent to which the Participant shall have the right to retain Performance Share Units following termination of the Participant's employment or other relationship with the Company or its Affiliates. Such provisions shall be determined in the sole discretion of the Committee, need not be uniform among all Performance Share Units issued pursuant to the Plan, and may reflect distinctions based on the reasons for

- termination, provided that the provisions shall comply with applicable rules of the Exchange.
- 8.7 Non-transferability of Performance Share Units. Performance Share Units may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned or otherwise alienated or hypothecated, subject to Section 9.1. Further, a Participant's rights under the Plan shall inure during such Participant's lifetime only to such Participant.

ARTICLE 9 BENEFICIARY DESIGNATION

- 9.1 <u>Beneficiary</u>. A Participant's "beneficiary" is the person or persons entitled to receive payments or other benefits or exercise rights that are available under the Plan in the event of the Participant's death. A Participant may designate a beneficiary or change a previous beneficiary designation at such times as prescribed by the Committee and by using such forms and following such procedures approved or accepted by the Committee for that purpose. If no beneficiary designated by the Participant is eligible to receive payments or other benefits or exercise rights that are available under the Plan at the Participant's death, the beneficiary shall be the Participant's estate. Following the death of a Participant, a designated beneficiary will be entitled to make a claim for a maximum of 12 months.
- 9.2 <u>Discretion of the Committee</u>. Notwithstanding the provisions above, the Committee may, in its discretion, after notifying the affected Participants, modify the foregoing requirements, institute additional requirements for beneficiary designations, or suspend the existing beneficiary designations of living Participants or the process of determining beneficiaries under this Article 10, or both, in favor of another method of determining beneficiaries.

ARTICLE 10 RIGHTS OF PERSONS ELIGIBLE TO PARTICIPATE

10.1 <u>Employment</u>. Nothing in the Plan or an Award Agreement shall interfere with or limit in any way the right of the Company or an Affiliate of the Company to terminate any Participant's employment, consulting or other service relationship with the Company or the Affiliate at any time, nor confer upon any Participant any right to continue in the capacity in which he or she is employed or otherwise serves the Company or the Affiliate.

Neither an Award nor any benefits arising under the Plan shall constitute part of an employment or service contract with the Company or an Affiliate of the Company, and, accordingly, subject to the terms of the Plan, the Plan may be terminated or modified at any time in the sole and exclusive discretion of the Committee or the Board without giving rise to liability on the part of the Company or its Affiliates for severance payments or otherwise, except as provided in the Plan.

For purposes of the Plan, unless otherwise provided by the Committee, a transfer of employment of a Participant between the Company and an Affiliate or among Affiliates of the Company, shall not be deemed a termination of employment. The Committee may provide, in a Participant's Award Agreement or otherwise, the conditions under which a transfer of employment to an entity that is spun off from the Company or an Affiliate of the Company shall not be deemed a termination of employment for purposes of an Award.

- 10.2 <u>Participation</u>. No Employee or other Person eligible to participate in the Plan shall have the right to be selected to receive an Award. No person selected to receive an Award shall have the right to be selected to receive a future Award, or, if selected to receive a future Award, the right to receive such future Award on terms and conditions identical or in proportion in any way to any prior Award.
- 10.3 <u>Rights as a Shareholder</u>. A Participant shall have none of the rights of a shareholder with respect to Shares covered by any Award until the Participant becomes the holder of such Shares.

ARTICLE 11 CHANGE OF CONTROL

- 11.1 Change of Control and Termination of Employment. Subject to section 12.2 and the terms and provisions of any Award Agreement, if there is a Change of Control, any Awards held by a Participant shall automatically vest following such Change of Control, on the Termination Date, if the Participant is an Employee, officer or a Director and their employment, or officer or Director position is terminated within 12 months following the Change of Control, provided that no acceleration of Awards shall occur in the case of a Participant that was retained to provide Investor Relations Activities unless the approval of the Exchange is either obtained or not required.
- 11.2 <u>Discretion to Board</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, in the event of an actual or potential Change of Control, the Board may, in its sole discretion, without the necessity or requirement for the agreement of any Participant: (i) accelerate, conditionally or otherwise, on such terms as it sees fit (including, but not limited to those set out in (iii) and (iv) below), the vesting date of any Awards; (ii) permit the conditional redemption or exercise of any Awards, on such terms as it sees fit; (iii) otherwise amend or modify the terms of any Awards, including for greater certainty by (1) permitting Participants to exercise or redeem any Awards to assist the Participants to participate in the actual or potential Change of Control, or (2) providing that any Awards exercised or exercised shall be exercisable or redeemed for, in lieu of Shares, such property (including shares of another entity or cash) that shareholders of the Company will receive in the Change of Control; and (iv) terminate, following the successful completion of a Change of Control, on such terms as it sees fit, the Awards not exercised or redeemed prior to the successful completion of such Change of Control.
- 11.3 Non-Occurrence of Change of Control. In the event that any Awards are conditionally exercised pursuant to section 12.2 above and the Change of Control does not occur, the Board may, in its sole discretion, determine that any (i) Awards so exercised shall be reinstated as the type of Award prior to such exercise, and (ii) Shares issued be cancelled and any exercise or similar price received by the Company shall be returned to the Participant.
- 11.4 <u>Agreement with Purchaser in a Change of Control</u>. In connection with a Change of Control, the Board may be permitted to condition any acceleration of vesting on the Participant entering into an employment, confidentiality or other agreement with the purchaser as the Board deems appropriate.

ARTICLE 12 AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

- 12.1 Amendment and Termination. The Board may, at any time, suspend or terminate the Plan. Subject to compliance with any applicable law, including the rules of the Exchange, the Board may also, at any time, amend or revise the terms of the Plan and any Award Agreement. No such amendment of the Plan or Award Agreement may be made if such amendment would materially and adversely impair any rights arising from any Awards previously granted to a Participant under the Plan without the consent of the Participant or the representatives of his or her estate, as applicable. The Board may, by resolution, make any amendment to this Plan or any Share Units granted under it (together with any related Award Agreement) without shareholder approval, provided however, that the Board will not be entitled to amend this Plan or any Share Unit granted under it without shareholder (disinterested shareholder approval if applicable) and, if applicable, TSXV approval, in order to: (i) increase the maximum number of Shares issuable pursuant to this Plan; (ii) cancel a Share Unit and subsequently issue to the holder of such Share Unit a new Share Unit in replacement thereof; (iii) extend the term of a Share Unit, but not beyond the Expiry Date; (iv) permit the assignment or transfer of a Share Unit other than as provided for in this Plan; (v) add to the categories of persons eligible to participate in this Plan; or (v) in any other circumstances where TSXV and shareholder approval is required by the TSXV. Any renewal of this plan will be subject to disinterested shareholder approval, and TSXV approval as applicable.
- 12.2 Reduction of Option Price or Grant Price. Disinterested shareholder approval as required by the policies of the Exchange shall be obtained for any reduction in the Option Price or extension of the expiry date of an Option grant if the Participant is an Insider of the Company at the time of the proposed amendment.

ARTICLE 13 WITHHOLDING

- 13.1 Withholding. The Company or any of its Affiliates shall have the power and the right to deduct or withhold from any payment owed to the Participant, or require a Participant to remit to the Company or the Affiliate, an amount sufficient to satisfy federal, provincial and local taxes or domestic or foreign taxes required by law or regulation to be withheld with respect to any taxable event arising from or as a result of the Plan or any Award hereunder. The Committee may provide for Participants to satisfy withholding requirements by having the Company withhold and sell Shares or the Participant making such other arrangements, including the sale of Shares, in either case on such conditions as the Committee specifies.
- 13.2 Acknowledgement. Participant acknowledges and agrees that the ultimate liability for all taxes legally payable by Participant is and remains Participant's responsibility and may exceed the amount actually withheld by the Company. Participant further acknowledges that the Company: (a) makes no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any taxes in connection with any aspect of the Plan; and (b) does not commit to and is under no obligation to structure the terms of the Plan to reduce or eliminate Participant's liability for taxes or achieve any particular tax result. Further, if Participant has become subject to tax in more than one jurisdiction, Participant acknowledges that the Company may be required to withhold or account for taxes in more than one jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 14 SUCCESSORS

14.1 Any obligations of the Company or its Affiliates under the Plan with respect to Awards granted hereunder shall be binding on any successor to the Company or its Affiliates, respectively, whether the existence of such successor is the result of a direct or indirect purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, of all or substantially all of the businesses and/or assets of the Company or the Affiliate, as applicable.

ARTICLE 15 GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 15.1 <u>Delivery of Title</u>. The Company shall have no obligation to issue or deliver evidence of title for Shares issued under the Plan prior to:
 - (a) Obtaining any approvals from governmental agencies that the Company determines are necessary or advisable; and
 - (b) Completion of any registration or other qualification of the Shares under any applicable law or ruling of any governmental body that the Company determines to be necessary or advisable.

If for any reason Shares cannot be issued to a Participant, the obligation of the Company to issue such Shares shall terminate.

- 15.2 <u>Conflict</u>. To the extent there is any inconsistency or ambiguity between this Plan and any employment contract, the terms of such employment contract shall govern to the extent of such inconsistency or ambiguity, subject only to compliance with applicable law and Exchange Policies.
- 15.3 <u>Investment Representations</u>. The Committee may require each Participant receiving Shares pursuant to an Award under the Plan to represent and warrant in writing that the Participant is acquiring the Shares for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such Shares.
- Legends and Resale Restrictions. The certificates for Shares may include any legend that the Committee deems appropriate to reflect any restrictions on transfer of such Shares, in addition to any resale restrictions under applicable securities laws and any other circumstance in which the Exchange Hold Period may apply.
- 15.5 <u>Uncertificated Shares</u>. To the extent that the Plan provides for issuance of certificates to reflect the transfer of Shares, the transfer of such Shares may be effected on a non-certificated basis to the extent not prohibited by applicable law or the rules of the Exchange.
- No Fractional Shares. No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan or any Award Agreement. In such an instance, unless the Committee determines otherwise, fractional Shares and any rights thereto shall be forfeited or otherwise eliminated.
- 15.7 Other Compensation and Benefit Plans. Nothing in the Plan shall be construed to limit the right of the Company or an Affiliate of the Company to establish other compensation or

benefit plans, programs, policies or arrangements. Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in any other benefit plan, policy, program or arrangement, no Award shall be treated as compensation for purposes of calculating a Participant's rights under any such other plan, policy, program or arrangement.

- 15.8 <u>No Constraint on Corporate Action</u>. Nothing in the Plan shall be construed (i) to limit, impair or otherwise affect the Company's or its Affiliates' right or power to make adjustments, reclassifications, reorganizations or changes in its capital or business structure, or to merge or consolidate, or dissolve, liquidate, sell or transfer all or any part of its business or assets, or (ii) to limit the right or power of the Company or its Affiliates to take any action which such entity deems to be necessary or appropriate.
- 15.9 <u>Compliance with Canadian Securities Laws</u>. All Awards and the issuance of Shares underlying such Awards issued pursuant to the Plan will be issued pursuant to an exemption from the prospectus requirements of Canadian securities laws where applicable.
- 15.10 Compliance with U.S. Securities Laws. All Awards and the issuance of Shares underlying such Awards issued pursuant to the Plan will be issued pursuant to the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended or an exemption from such registration requirements. If the Awards or Shares are not so registered and no such registration exemption is available, the Company shall not be required to issue any Shares otherwise issuable hereunder.

ARTICLE 16 LEGAL CONSTRUCTION

- 16.1 <u>Gender and Number</u>. Except where otherwise indicated by the context, any masculine term used herein also shall include the feminine, the plural shall include the singular, and the singular shall include the plural.
- 16.2 <u>Severability</u>. In the event any provision of the Plan shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid provision had not been included.
- 16.3 Requirements of Law. The granting of Awards and the issuance of Shares under the Plan shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or securities exchanges as may be required. The Company or an Affiliate of the Company shall receive the consideration required by law for the issuance of Awards under the Plan.
 - The inability of the Company or an Affiliate of the Company to obtain authority from any regulatory body having jurisdiction, which authority is deemed by the Company or the Affiliate to be necessary for the lawful issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder, shall relieve the Company or the Affiliate of any liability in respect of the failure to issue or sell such Shares as to which such requisite authority shall not have been obtained.
- 16.4 <u>Governing Law</u>. The Plan and each Award Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Province of British Columbia and the laws of Canada applicable therein excluding any

conflicts or choice of law rule or principle that might otherwise refer construction or interpretation of the Plan to the substantive law of another jurisdiction.

SCHEDULE "D" ADVANCE NOTICE POLICY RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Advance Notice Policy of the Company, a copy of which is attached as Schedule "E" to the Management Information Circular of the Company dated October 30, 2024, is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

SCHEDULE "E" ADVANCE NOTICE POLICY

ADVANCE NOTICE POLICY

(Adopted by the Board of Directors on October 28, 2024 with immediate effect)

ELEMENTAL ALTUS ROYALTIES CORP.

(the "Company")

INTRODUCTION

The Company is committed to: (i) facilitating an orderly and efficient annual general or, where the need arises, special meeting (which is not also an annual general meeting) process; (ii) ensuring that all shareholders receive adequate notice of the director nominations and sufficient information regarding all director nominees; and (iii) allowing shareholders to register an informed vote after having been afforded reasonable time for appropriate deliberation.

In addition, the purpose of this Advance Notice Policy (the "Policy") is to provide shareholders, directors and management of the Company with a clear framework respecting the nomination of persons for election as directors of the Company. This Policy fixes a deadline by which holders of record of common shares of the Company must submit nominations for election of directors of the Company prior to any annual general or special meeting (which is not also an annual general meeting) of shareholders called for the purpose of electing directors and sets forth the information that must be included in the written notice to the Company in order for any director nominee to be eligible for election as a director of the Company at any annual general or special meeting (which is not also an annual general meeting) of shareholders called for the purpose of electing directors.

The board of directors of the Company (the "Board") believes that this Policy is in the best interests of the Company, its shareholders and other stakeholders. This Policy will be subject to changes as required by securities regulatory authorities or stock exchanges, or as to meet industry or good governance standards from time to time.

NOMINATIONS OF DIRECTORS

- 1. Only persons who are eligible to act as directors of the Company under the *Business Corporations Act* (British Columbia) (the "**Act**") and who are nominated in accordance with the following procedures shall be eligible for election as directors of the Company. At any annual general meeting of shareholders, or at any special meeting (which is not also an annual general meeting) of shareholders if one of the purposes for which the special meeting was called is the election of directors, nominations of persons for election to the Board may be made only:
 - a. by or at the direction of the Board, including pursuant to a notice of meeting;
 - b. by or at the direction or request of one or more shareholders pursuant to a "proposal" made in accordance with Part 5, Division 7 of the Act, or pursuant to a requisition of the shareholders made in accordance with section 167 of the Act; or

- c. by any person (a "Nominating Shareholder"): (A) who, at the close of business on the date that the Nominating Shareholder's Notice (as defined below) is given and at the close of business on the record date for notice of such meeting, is entered in the securities register of the Company as a holder of one or more common shares carrying the right to vote at such meeting or who beneficially owns shares that are entitled to be voted at such meeting and provides evidence of such ownership that is reasonably satisfactory to the Company; and (B) who complies with the notice procedures set forth below in this Policy.
- 2. In addition to any other requirements under applicable laws, for a nomination to be made by a Nominating Shareholder, the Nominating Shareholder must have given notice thereof that is both timely (in accordance with paragraph 3 below) and in proper written form (in accordance with paragraph 4 below) to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at the registered office of the Company (in accordance with paragraph 7 below).
- 3. To be timely, a Nominating Shareholder's Notice (as defined below) to the Corporate Secretary of the Company must be made:
 - a. in the case of an annual general meeting of shareholders, not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty-five (65) days prior to the date of the annual general meeting of shareholders; provided, however, that in the event that the annual general meeting of shareholders is to be held on a date that is less than fifty (50) days after the date (the "**Notice Date**") on which the first Public Announcement (as defined below) of the date of the annual general meeting is made, notice by the Nominating Shareholder must be made not later than the close of business on the tenth (10th) day following the Notice Date; and
 - b. in the case of a special meeting (which is not also an annual general meeting) of shareholders called for the purpose of electing directors (whether or not called for other purposes), not later than the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day following the day on which the first Public Announcement of the date of the special meeting of shareholders is made.

The time periods for the giving of a Nominating Shareholder's Notice set forth above shall in all cases be determined based on the original date of the applicable annual general meeting or special meeting of shareholders (for greater certainty, the original date of the applicable annual general meeting or special meeting of shareholders shall not be determined with reference to any previously cancelled annual general meeting or special meeting of shareholders), and in no event shall any adjournment or postponement of a meeting of shareholders, or the reconvening of any adjourned or postponed meeting of shareholders, or the announcement thereof, commence a new time period for the giving of a Nominating Shareholder's Notice as described above.

- 4. To be in proper written form, a Nominating Shareholder's Notice must set forth:
 - a. as to each person whom the Nominating Shareholder proposes to nominate for election as a director: (A) the name, age, business address and residential address of the person; (B) the present principal occupation or employment of the person

and the principal occupation or employment within the five years preceding the notice, as well as a list of directorships currently held or held within the five years preceding the notice by such person; (C) the citizenship and country of residence of such person; (D) the class or series and number of shares in the capital of the Company which are directly or indirectly controlled or directed or which are owned beneficially or of record by the person as of the record date for the annual general meeting of shareholders, or the special meeting of shareholders if one of the purposes for which the special meeting was called is the election of directors (if such date shall then have been made publicly available and shall have occurred) and as of the date of such notice; and (E) any other information relating to the person that would be required to be disclosed in a dissident's proxy circular, or other filings required to be made, in connection with solicitations of proxies for election of directors pursuant to the Act and Applicable Securities Laws (as defined below); and

b. as to the Nominating Shareholder giving the Nominating Shareholder's Notice, and each beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination is made, full particulars regarding any proxy, contract, agreement, arrangement, understanding or relationship, including any interests, rights or obligations relating to the voting of any securities of the Company for the nomination of directors to the Board, pursuant to which such Nominating Shareholder, or any of its affiliates or associates, has a right to vote or direct, or is acting jointly or in concert with any other person(s) in connection with, the voting of any shares of the Company and any other information relating to such Nominating Shareholder that would be required to be made in a dissident's proxy circular in connection with solicitations of proxies for election of directors pursuant to the Act and Applicable Securities Laws (collectively with paragraph 4(a), the "Nominating Shareholder's Notice").

The Company may require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information, including providing a properly completed Personal Information Form, that may be required by an applicable stock exchange, as may be required to be contained in a dissident's proxy circular in connection with solicitations of proxies for election of directors pursuant to the Act and/or by Applicable Securities Laws, or as may reasonably be required by the Company to determine the eligibility and independence of such proposed nominee to serve as an independent director of the Company or that would reasonably be expected to be material to a reasonable shareholder's understanding of the independence and/or qualifications, or lack thereof, of such proposed nominee.

- 5. To be considered timely and in proper written form, the Nominating Shareholder's Notice must be promptly updated and supplemented, if necessary, so that the information provided or required to be provided in such Nominating Shareholder's Notice will be true and correct as of the record date for the annual general meeting of shareholders, or the special meeting of shareholders if one of the purposes for which the special meeting was called is the election of directors.
- 6. No person shall be eligible for election as a director of the Company unless nominated in accordance with the provisions of this Policy; provided, however, that nothing in this

Policy shall be deemed to preclude discussion by a shareholder (as distinct from the nomination of directors) at an annual general meeting of shareholders, or any special meeting of shareholders if one of the purposes for which the special meeting was called is the election of directors, of any matter in respect of which it would have been entitled to submit a proposal pursuant to the provisions of the Act or at the discretion of the Chairman. The Chairman of the meeting of shareholders shall have the power and duty to determine whether a nomination was made in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Policy and, if any proposed nomination is not in compliance with such provisions, to declare that such non-compliant nomination shall be disregarded.

7. For purposes of this Policy:

- a. "Public Announcement" shall mean disclosure in a press release reported by a national news service in Canada or publicly filed by the Company on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval+ at www.sedarplus.ca; and
- b. "Applicable Securities Laws" means, collectively, the applicable securities statutes of each province and territory of Canada, as amended from time to time, the rules, regulations and forms made or promulgated under any such statute and the published national instruments, multilateral instruments, policies, bulletins and notices of the securities commission and similar regulatory authority of each relevant province and territory of Canada.
- 8. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Policy, notice given to the Corporate Secretary of the Company pursuant to this Policy may only be given by personal delivery or email transmission, and shall be deemed to have been given and made only at the time it is served by personal delivery or sent by email transmission to the Corporate Secretary at the registered office of the Company as follows:

Elemental Altus Royalties Corp Suite 1020, 800 West Pender Street Vancouver, BC V6C 2V6

Email: legal@elementalaltus.com

provided that if such delivery or email transmission is made on a day which is a not a business day or later than 5:00 p.m. (Vancouver time) on a day which is a business day, then such delivery or email transmission shall be deemed to have been made on the next following day that is a business day.

9. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may, in its sole discretion, waive any requirement in this Policy.

GOVERNING LAW

This Policy shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the Province of British Columbia and the federal laws of Canada applicable in that province.

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Policy was approved and adopted by the Board on October 28, 2024 and is and shall be effective and in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and conditions from and after such date. Unless this Policy has been approved by the shareholders of the Company, this Policy shall not apply with respect to any meeting of shareholders, called for the purpose of electing any director or directors, following the annual general and special meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held on November 28, 2024, as such meeting may be adjourned or postponed from time to time.

SCHEDULE "F" AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

ELEMENTAL ALTUS ROYALTIES CORP. ("COMPANY") AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

INTRODUCTION

This Charter sets forth the purpose, composition, responsibilities and authority of the Audit Committee (the "Committee") of the board of directors (the "Board") of Elemental Altus Royalties Corp. (the "Company").

1. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to:

- Financial reporting and related financial disclosure;
- Risk management;
- Internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures;
- The annual independent audit of the Company's financial statements;
- Legal and regulatory compliance and compliance with the Code of Conduct;
- Related party transactions; and
- Compliance with public disclosure requirements.

2. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Committee shall consist of as many directors of the Board as the Board may determine (the "Members"), but in any event, not less than three (3) Members. The majority of Members shall be independent and all Members shall be financially literate within the meaning of National Instrument 52-110 — Audit Committees ("NI 52-110") and any other applicable securities laws and the rules of any stock exchanges upon which the Company's securities are listed. NI 52-110 requires, among other things, that to be independent a Member be free of any relationship which could, in the view of the Board, reasonably interfere with the exercise of a Member's independent judgment. No Member shall: (i) accept, directly or indirectly, any consulting or advisory or other compensatory fee from the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other than remuneration for acting in his or her capacity as a member of the Board and as a member of Board Committees); or (ii) unless approved by the Board and a majority of Members are independent, be an "affiliated entity" within the meaning of NI 52-110.

Members shall be appointed by the Board. Any Member may be removed and replaced at any time by the Board, and will automatically cease to be a Member if he or she ceases to meet the qualifications required of Members. The Board will fill vacancies on the Committee by appointment from among qualified directors of the Board. If a vacancy exists on the Committee, the remaining Members may exercise all of the Committee's powers so long as there is a quorum in accordance with Section 3 below.

Chair

The Board will designate one of the independent directors of the Board to be the chair of the Committee (the "Chair") and the Chair may be removed or replaced at any time by the Board.

Qualifications

Subject to the permitted phase-in periods contemplated by Section 3.2 and Section 3.8 of NI 52-110, a majority of Members shall be independent and all Members shall be financially literate as described above. Members must have suitable experience and must be familiar with auditing and financial matters.

Attendance of Management and other Persons

The Committee may invite, at its discretion, senior executives of the Company or such persons as it sees fit to attend meetings of the Committee and to take part in the discussion and consideration of the affairs of the Committee. The Committee may also require senior executives or other employees of the Company to produce such information and reports as the Committee may deem appropriate in the proper exercise of its duties. Senior executives and other employees of the Company shall attend a Committee meeting if invited by the Committee. The Committee may meet without senior executives in attendance for a portion of any meeting of the Committee.

Delegation Subject to applicable law, the Committee may delegate any or all of its functions to any of its Members or any subset thereof, or other persons, from time to time as it sees fit.

3. COMMITTEE OPERATIONS

Meetings

The Chair, in consultation with the other Members, shall determine the schedule and frequency of meetings of the Committee. Meetings of the Committee shall be held at such times and places as the Chair may determine. To the extent possible, advance notice of each meeting will be given to each Member unless all Members are present and waive notice, or if those absent waive notice before or after a meeting. Members may attend all meetings of the Committee either in person or by telephone, video or other electronic means. Powers of the Committee may also be exercised by written resolutions signed by all Members.

At the request of the external auditors of the Company, the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company or any Member, the Chair shall convene a meeting of the Committee. Any such request shall set out in reasonable detail the business proposed to be conducted at the meeting so requested.

Agenda and Reporting

To the extent possible, in advance of every regular meeting of the Committee, the Chair shall prepare and distribute, or cause to be prepared and distributed, to the Members and others as deemed appropriate by the Chair, an agenda of matters to be addressed at the meeting together with appropriate briefing materials.

The Chair shall report to the Board on the Committee's activities since the last Board meeting. However, the Chair may report orally to the Board on any matter in his or her view requiring the immediate attention of the Board. Minutes of each meeting of the Committee shall be circulated to the Board following approval of the minutes by the Members.

The Committee shall oversee the preparation of, review and approve the applicable disclosure for inclusion in the Company's annual information form.

Secretary and Minutes

The Corporate Secretary of the Company may act as the secretary of the Committee unless an alternative secretary is appointed by the Committee. The secretary of the Committee shall keep regular minutes of Committee proceedings and shall circulate such minutes to all Members and to the chair of the Board (and to any other director of the Board that requests that they be sent to him or her) on a timely basis.

Quorum and Procedure

A quorum for any meeting of the Committee will be a simple majority of the Members in office. The procedure at meetings will be determined by the Committee. The powers of the Committee may be exercised by a simple majority of Members at a meeting where a quorum is present or by resolution in writing signed by all Members. In the absence of the Chair, the Committee may appoint one of its other Members to act as Chair of any meeting.

Exercise of Power between Meetings

Between meetings, the Chair, or any Member designated for such purpose by the Committee, may, if required in the circumstance, exercise any power delegated by the Committee on an interim basis. The Chair or other designated Member will promptly report to the other Members in any case in which this interim power is exercised.

4. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee is responsible for performing the duties set out below and any other duties that may be assigned to it by the Board, as well as any other functions that may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

Financial Reporting and Disclosure

Review and recommend to the Board for approval, the interim and audited annual financial statements, including the auditors' report thereon, management's discussion and analysis, financial reports, press releases related to such financial statements and reports, and other applicable financial disclosure, prior to the public disclosure of such information.

Review and recommend to the Board for approval, where appropriate, financial information contained in any prospectuses, annual information forms, annual reports to shareholders, management proxy circulars, material change disclosures of a financial nature and similar disclosure documents, prior to the public disclosure of such documents or information.

Review with senior executives of the Company, and with external auditors, significant accounting principles and disclosure issues and alternative treatments under International Financial Reporting Standards ("**IFRS**"), with a view to gaining reasonable assurance that financial statements are accurate, complete and present fairly the Company's financial position and the results of its operations in accordance with IFRS, as applicable.

Seek to ensure that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Company's public disclosure of financial information extracted or derived from the Company's financial statements, the Company's disclosure controls and procedures and periodically assess the adequacy of those procedures and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for consideration.

Risk Management

Review the Company's major financial risk exposures and the steps taken to monitor and control such exposures, including the use of any financial derivatives and hedging activities.

Review and make recommendations to the Board regarding the adequacy of the Company's risk management policies and procedures with regard to identification of the Company's principal risks and implementation of appropriate systems and controls to manage such risks including an assessment of the adequacy of insurance coverage maintained by the Company.

Internal Controls and Internal Audit

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control and management information systems through discussions with senior executives of the Company and the external auditor relating to the maintenance of (i) necessary books, records and accounts in sufficient detail to accurately and fairly reflect the Company's transactions; (ii) effective internal control over financial reporting; and (iii) adequate processes for assessing the risk of material misstatements in the financial statements and for detecting control weaknesses or fraud. From time to time the Committee shall assess any requirements or changes with respect to the establishment or operations of the internal audit function having regard to the size and stage of development of the Company at any particular time. Satisfy itself, through discussions with senior executives of the Company that the adequacy of internal controls, systems and procedures has been periodically assessed in accordance with regulatory requirements and recommendations.

Periodically review the Company's policies and procedures for reviewing and approving or ratifying related- party transactions.

External Audit

Recommend to the Board a firm of external auditors to be nominated for appointment as the external auditors of the Company.

Ensure the external auditors report directly to the Committee on a regular basis. Review the independence of the external auditors.

Review and recommend to the Board the fee, scope and timing of the audit and other related services rendered by the external auditors.

Review and approve the audit plan of the external auditors, including the scope and staffing of the audit, prior to the commencement of the audit. Establish and maintain a direct line of communication with the Company's external auditors.

At each meeting, the Committee shall meet in private session, if required, and may meet with the external auditors, with management, and with the Committee members only.

Review and assess the compensation and oversight of the work of the external auditors of the Company with respect to preparing and issuing an audit report or performing other audit or review services for the Company, including the resolution of issues between senior executives of the Company and the external auditors regarding financial reporting. The external auditor shall report directly to the Committee.

Review the results of the external audit and the external auditors' report thereon, including discussions with the external auditors as to the quality of accounting principles used and any alternative treatments of financial information that have been discussed with senior executives of the Company and any other matters.

Review any material written communications between senior executives of the Company and the external auditors and any significant disagreements between the senior executives and the external auditors regarding financial reporting.

Discuss with the external auditors their perception of the Company's financial and accounting personnel, records and systems, the cooperation which the external auditors received during their course of their review and availability of records, data and other requested information and any recommendations with respect thereto.

Discuss with the external auditors their perception of the Company's identification and management of risks, including the adequacy or effectiveness of policies and procedures implemented to mitigate such risks.

Recommend to the Board any change of the external auditors and oversee any such change to ensure compliance with NI 52-110 and other applicable securities laws and any other significant issues related to the change, including the response of the incumbent auditors, and enquire as to the qualifications of the proposed auditors before making its recommendations to the Board.

Review and assess, at least annually, the performance of the external auditors, including (i) reviewing and evaluating the lead partner on the external auditor's engagement with the Company; and (ii) considering whether the auditor's quality controls are adequate and the provision of permitted non-audit services are compatible with maintaining the auditor's independence.

Associated Responsibilities

Monitor and periodically review the Code of Conduct of the Company and associated procedures for:

- The receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting and internal accounting controls or auditing matters;
- The confidential, anonymous submission by directors, officers and employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters; and
- Any violations of applicable law, rules or regulations that relate to corporate reporting and disclosure, or violations of the Company's Code of Conduct.

Review and approve the Company's hiring policies regarding employees and partners, and former employees and partners, of the present and former external auditors of the Company.

Non-Audit Services

Pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Company or any subsidiary entities by its external auditors or by the external auditors of such subsidiary entities, in accordance with NI 52-110 and other applicable securities laws, if any. The Committee may delegate to one or more of its Members the authority to pre-approve non-audit services but pre-approval by such Member or Members so delegated shall be presented to the full Committee at its first scheduled meeting following such pre-approval.

Other Duties

Direct and supervise the investigation into any matter brought to its attention within the scope of the Committee's duties. Perform such other duties as may be assigned to it by the Board from time to time or as may be required by applicable law.

5. THE COMMITTEE CHAIR

In addition to the responsibilities of the Chair described above, the Chair has the primary responsibility for overseeing and reporting on the evaluations to be conducted by the Committee, as well as monitoring developments with respect to accounting and auditing matters in general and reporting to the Committee on any related significant developments.

6. COMMITTEE EVALUATION

The performance of the Committee shall be evaluated by the Board as part of its regular evaluation of the Board committees.

7. ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND AUTHORITY TO RETAIN INDEPENDENT ADVISORS

The Committee shall be granted unrestricted access to all information regarding the Company that is necessary or desirable to fulfil its duties and all directors, officers and employees of the Company will be directed to cooperate as requested by Members. The Committee has the authority to retain, at the Company's expense, independent legal, financial, and other advisors, consultants and experts to assist the Committee in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities, including sole authority to retain and to approve their fees. In selecting such advisors, consultants and experts, the Committee shall take into account factors relevant to their independence from the Company's management and other relevant considerations.

The Committee shall discharge its responsibilities, and shall assess the information provided by the Company's management and the external advisors, in accordance with its business judgment. Members are entitled to rely, absent knowledge to the contrary, on the integrity of the persons and organizations from whom they receive information, and on the accuracy and completeness of the information provided. Nothing in this Charter is intended or may be construed as imposing on any member of the Committee or the Board a standard of care or diligence that is in any way more onerous or extensive than the standard to which the directors of the Board are subject under applicable law.

The Committee also has the authority to communicate directly with internal and external auditors. While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not the duty of the Committee to plan or

conduct audits or to determine that the Company's financial statements are complete and accurate or comply with IFRS and other applicable requirements. These are the responsibilities of the senior executives of the Company responsible for such matters and the external auditors. The Committee, the Chair and any Members identified as having accounting or related financial expertise are directors of the Board, appointed to the Committee to provide broad oversight of the financial, risk and control related activities of the Company, and are specifically not accountable or responsible for the day-to-day operation or performance of such activities. Although the designation of a Member as having accounting or related financial expertise for disclosure purposes is based on that individual's education and experience, which that individual will bring to bear in carrying out his or her duties on the Committee, such designation does not impose on such person any duties, obligations or liability that are greater than the duties, obligations and liability imposed on such person as a member of the Committee and the Board in the absence of such designation. Rather, the role of a Member who is identified as having accounting or related financial expertise, like the role of all Members, is to oversee the process, not to certify or guarantee the internal or external audit of the Company's financial information or public disclosure. This Charter is not intended to change or interpret the constating documents of the Company or applicable law or stock exchange rule to which the Company and all applicable laws and rules.

The Board may, from time to time, permit departures from the terms of this Charter, either prospectively or retrospectively. This Charter is not intended to give rise to civil liability on the part of the Company or its directors or officers, to shareholders, security holders, customers, suppliers, competitors, employees or other persons, or to any other liability whatsoever on their part.

8. REVIEW OF CHARTER

The Committee shall periodically review and assess the adequacy of this Charter and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for consideration.